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Our mission as a global “green” supplier is to provide
quality remanufactured toner cartridges/recycled
products that agree with our commitment to the 3R —
Reduce, Reuse and Recycle.

(155 B IR (R B BLE T B 180 (& 50 /2 73R —
B0 fE - F R bR - BECIEH ER AR
B BBEEER



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBERE

AFER

TREHmEE

EELRREREARRD

EEERRE

EFgRE

BRI A

B E

Contents
El>

PAGE(S)
AR

21
25
32
47
53
54
55
56
57
59

164

2008 i | BXEMREEFRAH

1



Financial Highlights
B %5 B

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FOR THE YEAR £ (4 #Z it & T 35

2008
—EEBNF

. PRC including Hong Kong F B (BIEEH) 43.87%
O Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A £ ftb it [& 15.08%
. North and South America 1t 3 il K @ 3£ M 30.76%
() Europe EX 10.19%
O Others E ft 0.10%

2007
—EBtHF

o 9

. PRC including Hong Kong & (BIEE#)
O Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A H ftb o [&
. North and South America 4t 3 il & & £ M
O Europe ERM
O Others H At

L L

51.36%

20.92%

18.17%

9.34%

0.21%

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR S AR I EX KRS DL X5

2008
—eBNE

. Remanufacture and sale of computer
printing and imaging products
BERBEEEKITHNERYGER 68.12%

O Manufacture and sale of data media products
HERBRBREBER 22.85%

. Distribution and sale of data media products
D RHEBREBER 9.03%

2007
—EELH

. Remanufacture and sale of computer
printing and imaging products
BEREHREKITORERER

O Manufacture and sale of data media products
BERERBBEBER

. Distribution and sale of data media products
DR HERIBEBER
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Financial Highlights
B 75 1 2

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS MBREEXEME
HIGHLIGHTS
[()PERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2006 2005 ZOOD
mEXE(TER) “2B0\F -TTHF —TTRE —TTHF —TIWE
Turnover HEE 455,531 418,159 345,552 329,745 363,765
Turnover increase/(decrease) (%) wEEEM CRD) (%) 9 21 5 (9) 13
Net (loss)/profit attributable to AYNGIE: $:3 & 1)
equity shareholders of the Company (E518),/m A (159,787) 33,476 64,965 (135,219) 20,117
Net (loss)/profit attributable to ENUNETE: i Y o)
equity shareholders of the Company (B18)/HH
\_ increase/(decrease) (%) B,/ GRd) (%) (577) (48) 148.0 (72.2) 66.8j
[FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2006 2005 ZOOD
BBERR (FET) —EEN\E —TTHF ZTTRX —ZETRE —TTOEF
Shareholders’ funds BEES 178,452 336,848 277,190 208,409 318,798
Total assets BEE 588,912 684,410 553,235 525,031 570,250
Net assets EEFEE 178,452 336,848 277,190 208,409 318,798
kNet asset value per share (cents) FREEFE (D) 22.3 423 40.3 30.3 69'6/
GlNANClAL STATISTICS 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004\
B R4 st —EENE —TTLF ZTERF —TTAF —ZTTNHF
Current ratio BN % 1.2 22 15 1.1 1.3
Bank and other borrowings to RITREMEE
equity ratio BEARL® 1.7 0.8 0.7 1.1 0.6
Total debt to equity ratio BMEREREREE 23 1.0 1.0 1.5 0.8
Inventory turnover on sales (days) HEFEAB(R) 178.9 171.4 136.2 81.0 56.0
Return on total assets (%) BEERIRE(%) (27.1) 4.9 1.7 (25.8) 35
Return on sales (%) 5 Bl ¥R % (%) (35.1) 8.0 18.8 (41.0) 5.5
(Loss)/earnings per share (cents) Sk (&18) /&F (1) (20.0) 45 9.4 (19.8) 4.0
\ Dividend per share (cents) SRS (1) - - - - -
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Corporate Information
ANEIR- 9=

DIRECTORS
Executive directors

HO Yin King, Helena (Chairman and Managing Director)
HO Fai Keung, Jacky (Deputy Chairman)

CHEUNG Sze Ming

LO Suk King

Independent non-executive directors

LI Sau Hung, Eddy
LEUNG Ka Kui, Johnny
CHAN Kam Kwan, Jason

COMPANY SECRETARY

CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

HO Yin King, Helena
CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 8, 10/F
Riley House

88 Lei Muk Road
Kwai Chung
New Territories

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited, Macau Branch
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Orix Asia Limited

AUDITORS

KPMG

SOLICITORS

K&L Gates LLP
Wong and Chan

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.irasia.com/listco/hk/jackin/index.htm
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRESE

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a turnover
of HK$455,531,000,
HK$418,159,000 in 2007. The Group's loss attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to HK$159,787,000 in 2008 (2007: profit
attributable to equity shareholders amounted to HK$33,476,000) which

representing an increase of 9% compared with

include the impairment losses of assets amounted to HK$128,369,000
(2007: nil). Basic loss per share in 2008 was HK20.0 cents as compared
with basic earnings per share of HK4.5 cents in 2007.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Although the world economy and most industries were hit by the
financial crisis in late 2008, certain businesses including those of the
Group actually benefited from the situation. The core business segment
of the Group, which is production of remanufactured/recycled toner
cartridges, recorded continuous growth during the year, as more
corporations chose to use recycled products for cost control reasons.
Despite a slight decrease in turnover during the fourth quarter of last

year, the overall turnover of the year recorded satisfactory growth.

REMANUFACTURED/RECYCLED TONER
CARTRIDGE PRODUCTION

During the year, the segment achieved sales growth of 10% to HK$310
million (2007: HK$283 million), accounting for 68% of the Group’s total
turnover, which was attributable to the increase in number of clients
and sales orders as well as rise in average selling price. The increase in
sales of colour toner cartridges with higher selling price and gross profit
margin than black toner cartridges also contributed to the turnover

growth.

TS
%n\

BE_ZT\E+_A=-+—HLFE K&

E 1) 2 5 %8 5455,531,00008 70 8 — BT L4
#1418,159,000/8 T8 RI% - R =TT )\ F - &
IR FEE A EE5181E159,787,0008 7T (=

/

TE A F 5 IR M5 & 333,476,000
L) HBEEEREEE128,369,00048 T (=
ZTHF | T \FHEREREER
2008 - M-—ZEZLFHERERRBF R4.5
B -

E e

BEEHREBELRZTEOX _TT\FRER
FNERERITE BEMETERBEASHE
BENEBARNLZE AREZEEEEER
TEIE & E m AR - R B EBE
ERRBE/RBRBERNEXEBNFANES
FERR BELZFEONFTEXEREMTHR =
FREEBDESmEER-

RRBE BRBERVEER

FRILEBHEEFEILR10%%310,000,000
BT (T 4283, 000,0005%7*5) EEFN S
B 4L EFEM68% © REFEE RIFE
ETEIN M T HEEMETRATE N R
BIRNEHESE LA MEESEREFNRLHRE
BIRHESS TEBEEELR-
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REMANUFACTURED/RECYCLED TONER
CARTRIDGE PRODUCTION (continued)

Sales to major markets, being the United States (“US"), Asia Pacific and
Europe, represented 53%, 36% and 11% of the Group's total turnover
respectively. For the year under review, sales grew the strongest in the US
market as more corporations shifted to use environmental friendly and
competitively priced recycled toner cartridges to control cost during the
economic downturn. The Group was able to seize business opportunities
and secured sizeable orders from new clients with the support of its
distribution network in the market and due to its superior product
quality at competitively prices when compared with those offered by
its US competitors. Moreover, the tightened enforcement of prohibited
importation of patent-infringing compatible toner cartridges in the US
has indirectly stimulated the sales of the Group’s products which meet

international standards in every technical aspect.

In the Asia Pacific markets, sales grew faster in Japan as more clients
turn to outsource production of recycled toner cartridges to region with
lower production costs and the Group is one of the major suppliers
in Asia. Moreover, the Group is the only company in South China
which possesses a unique license to import used toner cartridges for
remanufacturing. The Group's license is recently extended by the
local authority for 30 years, which will benefit the Group’s long-term

development.

During the year, the Group commenced production for a long-term OEM
supply contract of recycled toner cartridges for a US-based multinational
company with a worldwide customer network. The first batch of toner
cartridges was shipped to the US in the last quarter of 2008. The Group
expects the customer, who is targeting a number of corporate sales
networks and markets, will increase order volume in the coming year and

thus allow the Group to generate significant and stable revenue.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

COMPUTER MEDIA PRODUCTION

The Group is currently the largest OEM manufacturer of computer
media products in the world, supplying to OEM customers which own
worldwide brand names. The Group obtained a few new orders during
the year, although the segment’'s turnover decreased in the fourth
quarter of 2008 because of the financial crisis. Sales from the segment
reached HK$104 million, accounting for 23% of the total turnover of the
Group. Despite the growth in turnover, gross profit margin was squeezed
due to lower selling price and segment loss was recorded from this
business sector. As a result of the unsatisfactory performance, value of
the assets employed in this segment was impaired. During the year under
review, the Group recorded impairment of fixed assets of HK$59 million
and impairment of trade and other receivables of HK$4 million for this

segment.

DISTRIBUTION OF MEDIA PRODUCTS

Turnover from distribution of media products amounted to HK$41
million, accounting for 9% of the Group's total revenue. The Group
has been manufacturing and distributing an additional data media
product line for a major computer product vendor after securing the
sole distribution right for the product line in China since 2005. During
the year under review, the Group recorded an impairment of goodwill of

HK$40 million for this segment.

AUDIT OPINION

The auditors of the Company have issued a disclaimer of opinion on the
financial statements of the Group for the year under review. Details of
the auditor’s report are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report”

and the matters referred to therein are discussed below.

ERKREER

BA AEBEREREANEMRKBERRRE
SUELER HETHABRRRE ORI ERE
EP -BAUXRBXEBORTE UBEXE

RZZEZENFEFOETE - BEERFARE
AT HTET E - L HE S #0855 §8 43104,000,00078
TU AR REEBEETEM23% o A EBE Y
R-BESETE WERRER  mitEHT
BEEIE AREEEZRAR  MULEBHAN
EEBEDTRE -BEFRN AEERLED
$%15 & £ & ZE M 859,000,000 LA R E 5 &
H th jE W 5K T8 R 1 4,000,0007% 7T

HEEmTDH

IS EE fn D BH TS ER 154 25 %841,000,0008 7T
MAEEBKAKI% - BEEN _TTHFH
B RIZERELUEBOTRBEEEER
ZIZERNBRDHEER SEE—HAHLEE
ROHEZEMRRY - REBEFE NEEMILD
BB 8215 2 75 BRI 1B /340,000,000 7T ©

BEER

ARBZHEMERAEERFENORBIRERA
KRB R - RBEN R E R FBHNIB L ZBE TR
CTE AT E EE R T XA e
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AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(a) Trading and related settlement of electronic

wastes and imaging products

The Group is a well-established producer of remanufactured/
recycled cartridges and generally purchases electronic wastes and
imaging products as parts and components for its products. To
meet the production demand from its broad customer base in
Hong Kong, China and overseas markets, the Group has been
sourcing electronic wastes and imaging products from a large
number of suppliers. As a result of the overwhelming attention
on environmental protection in recent years, there has been a
significant growth in the remanufacturing production industry,
thus creating demand for electronic wastes and imaging products.
With a view to capturing market opportunities with its established
connection with electronic wastes and imaging products traders, the
Group commenced the business of trading of electronic wastes and
imaging products through a wholly-owned subsidiary since 2007 to
conduct this business. This subsidiary recorded sales and purchases
amounting to approximately HK$105.1 million and HK$100.8
million respectively for the year ended 31 December 2008. Due to
the variety of product models and the market channels for sourcing
electronic wastes and imaging products, there are a large number
of traders in the market who may sell a particular type of electronic
wastes and imaging products to the Group as raw materials and
purchase other types of electronic wastes and imaging products or
recycled products from the Group. Accordingly, traders may on one
hand be a supplier of the Group and on the other a customer of the
Group, and the relevant trade debtors and creditors resulting from
the sales and purchases of the Group with these traders are set-off
against each other and some of the balances are settled in cash.
These settlement methods are consistently adopted by the Group

for this business segment.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(a) Trading and related settlement of electronic

wastes and imaging products (continued)

The Group has adopted a set of internal control procedures and
policies in respect of the conduct and recording of the electronic
wastes and imaging products trading business, which are largely
the same as those for the other business segment of the Group.
These procedures and policies have been consistently adopted by
the subsidiary since 2007. The Directors believe that the Group
has sufficient internal control measures to govern the proper
conduct of the electronic wastes and imaging product trading and
has maintained proper supporting and documentary evidence in
relation to these transactions which include, among other things,
purchase orders, sales invoices, delivery notes, shipping documents,
acknowledgements of goods receipt, and payment records. In view
of the auditor’s opinion, the Company has engaged an independent
professional advisor to conduct a thorough review of the Group’s
internal control system on the sales and purchases cycles of the
electronic wastes and imaging product trading business with a
view to improving its record keeping and bookkeeping procedures

particularly for cash transactions.

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008
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AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(b) Sales of media products and recycled toner

cartridges to certain customers

Included in the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December
2008 were reported sales of approximately HK$24.4 million and
HK$5.6 million to certain customers in respect of the sales of
floppy disks and recycled toner cartridges respectively. The Group
is currently the only major OEM manufacturer that produces floppy
disks in the world. Notwithstanding the advancement in the digital
storage media market, there are demands for the Group's floppy
disk products from customers in the PRC because of the limited
supply. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded
sales of floppy disks of approximately HK$24.4 million to several
customers in the PRC. As these customers are small scale domestic
companies or individuals, they are usually slow in payment and
some of the purchases were settled in cash. As at 31 December
2008, the unsettled balance from these customers amounted to
approximately HK$28.4 million. The Group has been continuously
receiving settlement from these customers after 31 December
2008 and is satisfied with the credit worthiness of these clients. In
respect of the sales of recycled toner cartridges of HK$5.6 million,
the transactions were carried out in usual course of business
and the Directors consider that there would not be any material
recoverability issue relating to the outstanding balances of these

transactions.

The Directors consider that proper books, records and documents
such as purchase orders, sales invoices, delivery notes and receipts,
shipping documents, and banking documents have been maintained
by the Group to account for these transactions. The internal control
system review to be performed by the independent professional
advisor as mentioned in (a) above will also cover this business

segment of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

EZER (&
(b) IETEFHEREBRERRER

BEmHE

AEEBHEE-_TTNF+_A=1+—H8B1
FEMEEEDAEGNETEPHEM
B 4724,400,000/8 T HY $H B 5 R A& T &
P SHETRIR B S A [E 495,600,000 TTHY
SHEE - NEMIRAS A2 R — AN
ITERBEREEER REYIGHTHREE
MBRE—ATE EPARTFENES
RIVEAEENHUEAMER -HE-FT
NEFZA=+—BILFE AEEHEEA
% % Bl & P 856 LK £924,400,000% 7T
MEEE BN EEEFP AN RNE AR
A WA RFTR - ME D g A
RN -RZZTENF+=_A=+—8"
ZEZ PRGN R4 528,400,000
T AEBR_TTN\F+-_A=+—8
BINEEEZEETPBEIAIE  WHZF
BEEFMEERERIRE -SHERBIER
M [E %95,600,000/8 THHEREN S X5
DB EXEBKBRET EERAABXZ
SERGMAENEHTIELBEERN K EM

B

EENRARREEFALERR  RER
XAHMETE HEER BRI
B R BT - LA BB IR 5% -
45 ()R LI 37 S B R 17 60 P
HERFEENITSRE AR HE—E
E£HHE-

2008 i | BXEMREEFRAH

11



12

Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(c) Acquisition of technical know-how and

distribution channels

To maintain its competitive edge, the Group continues to strive for
technological advancement in its production process and expanding
its distribution network and client base. During the year under
review, the Group has negotiated with two companies which
possessed certain technical know-how that could enhance the
efficiency of the production process, and another company which
possessed a sizeable client base. The Group successfully entered
into three agreements to acquire the technical know-how for a
total consideration of HK$26.0 million and the distribution channel
for a consideration of HK$15.8 million from these companies in
the second half of 2008. In order to preserve cash position, the
Group had negotiated the payment terms with them and the total
consideration was settled in installments by off-setting against the
trade receivables arising from sale of electronic wastes and imaging
products and recycled products by the Group to their respective

related companies.

The Directors believe the acquisition of the above technical know-
how would greatly enhance the efficiency of the production process
of computer printing and imaging products and lead to improved
product quality as well as significant cost savings. The economic
benefits from the acquisition of the technical know-how have been
reflected in a substantial decrease in the total purchases of raw
materials and increased revenue in the second half of the year. The
technical know-how suppliers will continuously provide technical
support and training to the Group by sending well-trained and
experienced engineers and technicians to the Group’s factory.
The Directors also believe that the acquisition of the distribution
channel would not only enable the Group to expand its customer
base but also result in savings in commission expenses which would

otherwise be payable to the distribution channel providers.

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008
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AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of technical know-how and
distribution channels (continued)

The Company has engaged a technical adviser who has opined
that the technical know-how that the Group acquired is a valuable
know-how for the Group’s production. In addition, the Group had
engaged an independent professional valuer to perform valuations
of the technical know-how and distribution channels based on the
expected cost savings to be generated. The values of the technical
know-how and distribution channels as at 31 December 2008 as
appraised by the independent professional valuer were HK$51.8
million and HK$17.7 million respectively, but the said values have
not been reflected in the financial statements of the Group for the

year under review.

Acquisition and prepayment of certain fixed
assets

Apart from acquiring the technical know-how, the Group had
also purchased machinery from one of the technical know-
how suppliers. As this supplier fully understands the technical
requirements of the Group’s production process as well as various
conditions as imposed by the environmental protection bodies of
the PRC government, the Directors considered that this supplier is
in a position to source the appropriate machinery for the Group.
In addition, the machinery supplier also provides advices on
measures to improve the treatment and disposal of solid wastes
generated from the Group's production process which is subject to
stringent requirements from the regulatory bodies of environmental
protection in the PRC. The machinery has been installed at the
Group's production facilities at Shenzhen and Zhuhai and can be
clearly identified. The terms of the purchase including the price
and payment terms were negotiated on an after arm’s length
basis taking into account the valued-added services provided by
the machinery supplier, and subsequent leasing arrangement with
independent financial institutions who verified the existence and

valuation of the machinery.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(e) Internal costing system for inventory

(f)

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008

The Group has maintained a computerised inventory management
system and applied weighted average costing approach consistently
for its inventory valuation for over three years. The management
of the Group has been satisfied with the system and no material
deficiency has been identified in the past. Due to the volatility in
the prices of raw materials and components during the year under
review, certain discrepancies in inventory costing system were
noted during the course of audit. The Company has subsequently
adjusted the valuation of the inventories based on weighted
average purchase costs. The Company has engaged an independent
professional advisor to perform an agreed-upon due diligence
procedures at the costing of the inventory under the current system
and the results of such procedures have been found satisfactory in

all material aspects.

Subsequent events

The Directors consider that adequate disclosures have been made
herein in respect of any significant transactions or events which
occurred following 31 December 2008 to the date of this Annual

Report.
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AUDIT OPINION (continued)

(g) Going concern

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has outstanding bank loans,
bonds and finance lease obligations of approximately HK$287
million. On the basis of the balance of total equity of the Group
as at 31 December 2008 as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet above, and according to the terms of a bank loan (with
outstanding balance of approximately HK$14 million as at 31
December 2008 and also the date of this Annual Report) and a
bond (with outstanding balance of approximately HK$31 million
as at 31 December 2008 and also the date of this Annual Report),
the Group has breached certain covenants in relation to the
gearing ratio of the Group. The holder of the bond has confirmed
to the Company that despite the breach of covenants, currently
it will not request repayment of the bonds. In addition, on 21
May 2009, the Company has entered into a placing agreement
under which net proceeds of approximately HK$21 million will
be raised following completion of the placing. Please refer to the
separate announcement of the Company dated 22 May 2009 for
details of the placing. The Company has also negotiated with an
independent third party who intends to provide a working capital
loan facility of up to US$10,000,000. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the Group's total bank and other borrowings plus finance
lease obligations were HK$111 million, a substantial decrease of
HK$86 million since 31 December 2008. The net current assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2008 were approximately HK$67.62
million. The Directors are satisfied that taking into account the
facilities currently available to the Group and the confirmations and
the possible financial support as mentioned above, the Group has
sufficient working capital to meet its requirements for the coming

year, barring unforeseen circumstances.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Although the financial crisis is expected to continue to affect the
world economy, the Group believes global demand for recycled digital
imaging products will experience a double-digit growth in early year of
2009, driven by the growing amount of activities on the Internet and
an increasing awareness of environmental protection. Expecting more
outsourcing of production to occur and OEM contract customers to
increase, the Group is optimistic towards the growth of the recycled
products industry. The increasing demand for recycled toner cartridges
is expected to fuel a sustainable growth of the Group’s business. The
Group has seen encouraging growth of the business in the first quarter
of 2009 and the amount of sales orders even doubled that of the same
period in last year. The Group becomes the major and significant player
in the recycled toner cartridges industry in Asia where as the other

players are usually based in US and Mexico.

The Group will strive to expand its distribution networks in the
US, Europe and Asia Pacific as well as extend business coverage
geographically. It has entered markets such as India and Sri Lanka this
year and will continue to explore new markets in China, Eastern Europe
and South Africa in the near future. These markets will not only give the
Group a wider customer base and new revenue streams, but can also
allow it to improve the inventory turnover for lower end products which

are of greater demand in these markets.

More models of recycled toner cartridges, in particular colour products
of higher profit margin, will be developed to widen the product mix of
the Group. Efforts will also be made to increase production capacity
and efficiency. Furthermore, the Group will continue to enhance R&D,
staff training and environmental protection facilities, with the aim to
strengthening the Group’s overall competence. It will adopt prudent
expansion strategies based on careful sales projections while maintaining

healthy cashflow.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

For computer media production, the Group has taken immediate
measures to downsize the operation scale and control cost to mitigate
the impact of the financial crisis. The Group will adopt a prudent

approach in managing the computer media production business.

Unlike most businesses which have been adversely affected by the
financial crisis, the Group has been presented with valuable opportunities
to expand its recycled toner cartridge business. The poor economic
conditions in many regions have actually helped the Group to lower
production and distribution costs. With cost savings, the Group was able
to boost production capacity. The economic slowdown which caused
the close down of many production plants in the Pearl River Delta has
increased labour supply in the region where the Group's production base
is located. This phenomenon has resulted in wage level coming down
to a more reasonable level, thus giving the Group greater flexibility in
capturing business opportunities ahead. The Group will seek to build
long-term relationship with reputable corporations that can allow it to
derive significant and stable revenues and generate strong returns to

shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital and Debt Structure

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's total net assets was approximately
HK$178 million (31 December 2007: HK$337 million), representing
approximately HK$159 million decrease compared with that of previous

year, mainly due to the net loss for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital and Debt Structure (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's total bank and other borrowings
plus finance lease obligations decreased by HK$8 million to HK$197
million (31 December 2007: HK$205 million), of which HK$167 million
was payable within one year and HK$30 million was payable after one
year. The majority of the Group's borrowings were import and export
loans and term loans that amounted to HK$98 million and HK$62 million
respectively (2007: HK$93 million and HK$84 million respectively).
Term loans were substantially decreased by HK$22 million. Most of
the Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
subject to floating interest rates. Hence the risk of currency exposure
was minimal. The Group’s total cash and bank balances included
bank deposits pledged amounted to approximately HK$23 million (31
December 2007: approximately HK$39 million), representing a decrease

of approximately HK$16 million.

The Group's net debt to equity ratio was kept at 1.7 (31 December 2007:
0.8), which is determined by total bank and other borrowings, notes

payable and obligation under finance leases over total net assets.

Working Capital and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's current ratio and quick ratio
were 1.2 and 0.6 respectively (2007: 2.2 and 1.3). Inventory turnover
on sales increased to 179 days (31 December 2007: 171 days) primarily
due to the expansion of remanufactured toner business which raised the
required inventory level for production especially for the inventories in
its distribution channels to provide quick delivery service to some large
OEM customers in US. Receivable turnover decreased to 144 days (31

December 2007: 171 days).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Charges on the Group'’s
Assets

The Group had pledged its assets with an aggregate net book value of
HK$44 million (2007: HK$41 million) to secure bank loans granted and

finance lease obligations.

Issuance of Secured Bonds and Warrants

On 10 October 2008, the Company issued, and Martin Currie China
Hedge Fund L.P. (the “Subscriber”), the Company’s substantial
shareholder, subscribed for guaranteed bonds (the “Guaranteed Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$31.2 million. The Guaranteed
Bonds were guaranteed by Sun Union Enterprises Limited, the Company’s
substantial shareholder, carried interest at 15% per annum and repayable

on 27 June 2010.

On 27 June 2007, the Company issued, and the Subscriber subscribed
for secured bonds (the “Secured Bonds”) in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$78 million. The Secured Bonds were secured, carried
interest at 10% per annum and repayable three years after the date of
issue of the Secured Bonds. On the same date, the Company issued, by
way of bonus, to the Subscriber of unlisted warrants (the “Warrants”)
of the Company conferring rights entitling the holders to subscribe for
up to HK$31.2 million in aggregate in cash for 56,317,689 new shares
of HK$0.10 each of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.554 per share, subject to adjustment. The Warrants are exercisable

within a period from 28 December 2007 to 27 June 2010.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2008, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 960. The remuneration packages of the Group’s
employees are mainly based on their performance and experience, taking
into account the current industry practices. Remuneration package of
employees includes salaries, insurance and medical cover, mandatory
provident fund and share option scheme. Other employee benefits

include educational allowance and discretionary bonuses.
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Chairman’s Statement
TREBREE

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 50,000,000 new shares
were issued on 24 February 2009 and the Company received the net

proceeds of approximately HK$13,800,000.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Issuer”) issued and The China Fund, Inc. subscribed for
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$177 million. The Convertible Bonds were secured, carried
interest at 12% per annum and repayable three years after the issue
date of the Convertible Bonds. Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement, the Convertible Bonds are convertible
into the Issuer’s shares representing 30% of its enlarged issued share
capital. Given that the terms of the Convertible Bonds limit the maximum

number of the Issuer Shares to be issued to not more than 49% of the

Issuer’s enlarged issued share capital.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, pursuant to the terms of the
subscription agreement of the Convertible Bonds, the Secured Notes of
HK$78 million were fully re-purchased and their accrued interest were

fully repaid upon closing.

On 21 May 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with an
independent party in relation to the subscription at a price of HK$0.195
per subscription share of 109,000,000 new shares to be allotted and

issued.

By Order of the Board

Ho Yin King, Helena

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 May 2009
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Ms. HO Yin King, Helena, aged 51, is a co-founder of the Group and
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, and is responsible
for the Group's strategic planning. Ms. Ho graduated from the University
of Toronto, Canada, with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce in 1981. She
had two years' experience in financial analysis and foreign exchange
dealing prior to the establishment of the Group in 1983. Ms. Ho was
elected the Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong 1993 by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. She is the sister of Mr. Ho Fai

Keung, Jacky and the sister-in-law of Ms. Lo Suk King.

Mr. HO Fai Keung, Jacky, aged 46, is a co-founder of the Group and
the Deputy Chairman of the Company. He is responsible for marketing of
the Group's products. Mr. Ho is the brother of Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena
and the husband of Ms. Lo Suk King.

Mr. CHEUNG Sze Ming, aged 40, is a Certified Public Accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and holds
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He joined the Group in 2001 and is currently the Finance
Director of the Group responsible for overall financial control and
treasury function over the Group. Mr. Cheung has over 16 years’ working

experience in international audit firm and listed companies.

Ms. LO Suk King, aged 46, joined the Group in 1990 and has been
a director of Jackin Video Cassette Co. Limited since 1994 and Feitian
Magnetic Information-Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. since 2004
respectively, both being wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
Lo is responsible for the overall control and business management of the
two subsidiaries. She is the spouse of Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky, and the

sister-in-law of Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EFEhaREREBABEAN

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive directors

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, aged 54, has over 20 years’ experience in the
manufacturing industry. He is a member of the National Committee of
The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the president
of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Association Ltd. He holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and a PhD Degree in economics. He
was elected one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong Kong
in 1991 and the Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong
1993. Dr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director of Midas
International Holdings Limited, Oriental Watch Holdings Limited and Man
Yue International Holdings Limited, all of which companies are listed on

the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LEUNG Ka Kui, Johnny, aged 52, Bachelor of Laws of the University
of London, is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England & Wales and
Singapore, and is a Notary Public and China Appointed Attesting Officer.
He has over 22 years of experience in legal field and is the senior partner

of Messrs. Johnny K.K. Leung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.

Mr. CHAN Kam Kwan, Jason, aged 35, holds a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce from University of British Columbia, Canada and is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has
over 10 years’ experience in accounting and corporate finance. He has
been working in a big-4 multinational audit firm and served a numbers
of listed corporation. Mr. Chan is currently an executive director and the
company secretary of China WindPower Group Limited and Wah Nam
International Holdings Limited. He is also the Company Secretary of DVN
(Holdings) Limited and MAE Holdings Limited. All the four companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. DUVA Mark Edward, aged 37, is the Vice President of Afex
International (HK) Limited. He is responsible for oversight the distribution
centre of Jackin U.S.A. Inc. and manages the North American operation
of Afex International (HK) Limited and Jackin U.S.A. Inc., both being
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from Tempe
Arizona College of Business, Arizona State University. Mr. Duva has over
12 years' experience in remanufactory industry. He joined the Group in

2005.

Mr. WONG Yiu Kay, aged 54, is the Plant Manager of the floppy disks
manufacturing operation and a toner cartridge remanufacturing factory
in PRC. He is responsible for overall production operation in the PRC
factories. He graduated from the University of East Asia, Macau and has
over 27 years' experience in the industry. Mr. Wong joined the Group in

1995.

Mr. NATAL Joe Luis, aged 39, is the Senior Technical Engineer for US
sales and remanufacturing in PRC. He is responsible to work closely
with industry suppliers to design new remanufacturing processes and
components. He is highly respected and well known across the US toner
remanufacturing industry. He has over 18 years’ experience and has
worked for 7 different remanufacturing companies. He has extensive
experience in all aspects of the business including product development,

quality control, manufacturing and material procurement.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EELRREBAEBGN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YIP Chun On, aged 34, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
He is responsible for financial control, taxation and coordination with
Company Secretary to oversee the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Mr. Yip is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He joined the Group in 2005 and has over 10 years’ experience in

international audit firm, merchant bank and listed company.

Mr. WONG Yick Chuen, Danny, aged 41, is the Assistant General
Manager of the Group. He is responsible for the marketing of the data
media products. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Toronto,
Canada, with a Bachelor Degree in Science in 1993. He joined the Group

in 1994.
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Corporate Governance Report

In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”),
the Company has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the “"Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2008 except

for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the

leadership of the Managing Director.

As at 22 May 2009, the Board comprised four Executive Directors and

three Independent Non-executive Directors.
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et oo
TEEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, the Board held four regular meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman and the Executive Directors in establishing
the meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of items
in the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company. Adequate and appropriate information
are circulated normally three days in advance of board meetings to
the Directors. The members of the Board and the attendance of each

member are as follows:

Directors and number of attendance

BEE (4

RER ESERTTHOAEREE RaNE
B EERREERER SEFAERNERESR
MAEMIEER - IEZE SR RBEARRAA
B —REEFEEZRTI-RENERE
BMrRkEREr EFeXERTESIHE
B

EEREERE

Attendance
Executive directors HITES HEER
Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena AR L (FEHREFHLE) 4/4

(Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky (Deputy Chairman) EREE (BIFE) 4/4
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming REFHE & 4/4
Ms. Lo Suk King BRI T 3/4
Independent non-executive directors BYKHITES
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEF LT 3/4
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny BRI EE 4/4
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason BeR 5 e 50 A4 4/4

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and Mr. Chan Kam

Kwan, Jason and the Company considers them to be independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board has
a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The list of Directors and their respective
biographies are set out on pages 21 to 22 of this Annual Report

respectively.

ARABEKRBNFFEE L - BRI E KRR
FAEZANFEBILIERER K MAR B IFRBRH
F 2B -

EXeCRBARRUTERERER #1584

RRABEBF22HBRERER -REEES
ERFEZENEEI BN AFRENES
228 °
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena is the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the roles of the managing
director and the chief executive officer are the same. Although under
A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual, the Company considers that the extensive experience and
marketing network established by Ms. Ho is critical for the business and
future development of the Company. Hence, the Company believes that
it is in the best interest of its shareholders that Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena
will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director of the Company. However, the Company will review

the current structure as and when it becomes appropriate in the future.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive directors should be

appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, the three Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-
laws of the Company, and their appointment will be reviewed when they

are due for re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written

terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on, among other things, the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the
Company and is delegated by the Board with the responsibility to
determine on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration packages for

all Executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Paras

% ERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Directors including the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Ka Kui,
Johnny (Chairman), Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Chan Kam Kwan,
Jason, and the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, Ms. Ho

Yin King, Helena.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.

Members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each

member are as follows:

Directors and Number of attendance

TMEEE (@)
HHEB R AEFAR  E= R BN
FEERRMEE (TFE) TAEWLRER
HEEURADAEEREF LR THRRL
+ o

RER FMEZEERTT —REH-

FHEEeREREKRBZHEBRINT

EERHRERE

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES HE =R
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny (Chairman) RREFE (F/E) 171
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEMHT 1/1
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR &8 1 5T A4 11
Executive Director HITES
Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena AR L+ 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the

following duties:

(1) reviewed and recommended that the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management for the year ended 31 December
2008 should be frozen and kept in line with the same level as they

were for the year ended 31 December 2007; and

(2) reviewed and recommended the grant of incentive share options to
the Directors and management staff of the Company to reward their

contributions in the past years.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The duties
and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code
are performed by the Board collectively with no Director being involved
in fixing his/her own terms of appointment and no Independent Non-

executive Director being involved in assessing his/her own independence.

RER FMEZBEEITUTERE:
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The Group was charged by the auditors, KPMG, the following auditing

and non-auditing services during the year:

Corporate Governance Report
DEBEARE

BB

RER AEBEXNESHEAMEEM T2
TR IR R E -

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered REHRE e ENER
HK$
BT

Audit services ZH RS 2,500,000

Non-audit services: FEZ BUR T

Taxation services ARG 81,700

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERERS

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of ARAGDRVEZEZES  WEME] LRI

reference. E[E o

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and

providing advice and comments to the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member

are as follows:
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Directors and number of attendance EERHERH

Attendance
Independent non-executive directors BUKHITES HE=
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (Chairman) EHEELT (FE) 12
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2R 55T 2/2
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason PR & 18 o A 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following

duties:

(1) reviewed with the auditors the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2007 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2008, with

recommendations to the Board for approval,

RER BERZBERETUATERE:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Directors and number of attendance (continued)

(2) reviewed report on internal control system covering financial,

operational, procedural compliance and risk management functions;

(3) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

(4) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group; and
(5) reviewed and approved the auditors’ remuneration.

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, a member of the Audit Committee,
possesses relevant professional qualifications and financial management

expertise and meets the requirements of rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2008 and for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently.

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company of HK$159,787,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008.
The Directors have considered the future liquidity of the Group in
view of the reported net loss. In addition, the Group breached certain
financial covenants of its banking facilities and of two bonds subscription
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2008. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the Directors
have adopted the going concern basis in preparing these financial
statements based on the assumptions and measures disclosed in the note

1(b) to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the measures taken to date
and to be taken and on the basis of the major assumptions disclosed
in note 1 to the financial statements, the Group will be able to finance
its working capital and financial requirements to maintain its operating
existence in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 47

to 52 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group covering the
financial, operational, procedural compliance and risk management
functions. The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievements of the Group’s objectives.

The Audit Committee acknowledged the auditor’s opinion on certain
deficiencies in the Group’s internal control system regarding its sales,
purchases and inventories cycles of the electronic wastes and used
imaging product trading business and cash transactions arising from the
aforesaid sales and purchases, and has requested that the Company will
implement the measures as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Audit
Opinion” in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 8 to 15 of this Annual
Report with a view to improving the Group’s internal control system to

address these identified weaknesses.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the

audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 53.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on page 164.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31 December
2008. The revaluation deficit of HK$1,416,000, net of deferred tax credit
of HK$318,000 have been charged to the property revaluation reserve.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13(a) to the

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of these movements during the year in the share capital are set

out in note 28 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
are available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December 2008
amounted to approximately HK$71,760,000 (2007: HK$181,923,000),
representing the aggregate of share premium of HK$122,076,000
(2007: HK$121,555,000), contributed surplus of HK$15,048,000 (2007:
HK$15,048,000), capital reserve of HK$6,255,000 (2007: HK$8,060,000)
and accumulated losses of HK$71,619,000 (2007: retained profits
HK$37,260,000).
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EERWE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Ms. Lo Suk King

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the Directors
retiring by rotation at the annual general meeting will be Ms. Ho Yin
King, Helena, Ms. Lo Suk King and Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny, who, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).
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Directors’ Report
EEGHRE

EERIBFRABRES
RORES > ERERKR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ A
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the Directors R-ZEZNF+-_A=+—H ARFEEER
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and ~EZ{7H A BN A A A sk £ T MEHBEE (F
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within 35 R &5 K HIEEN ([EHFLEEEN ) Exv
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))  #8) 2k - MBEARMD R ESTHEREZFER
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under HEiE{HIFE3521BIALRRAG EF 2 ELMA

\\

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and SKBRE LT AREZEEEFLARFHIEETHIMNE

BRI L

ExfEBA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant AR RIRBEHARZMERAE ([HBZAT])
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed ZH#EzmsAB T
Companies, were as follows:
Long positions L3}
(a) Shares and underlying shares of the Company (a) XL aRGREER G
Number of Percentage
Number of underlying of the issued
ordinary shares .
shares share capital
Personal Corporate held under of the
Name of Director Capacity interests interests  share options Total Company
N R R E EALE
HEEHE HEAR B
By 54 (5PN £ ARER BRAHE EHY BREBD
Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena Beneficial owner 22,411,000 178,194,000 6,872,628 207,477,628 25.97%
and interest of
controlled corporation
ARt EalEEAR
REFINE 2w
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky Beneficial owner 20,538,000 178,194,000 6,872,628 205,604,628 25.74%
and interest of
controlled corporation
R L4 EalEEAR
REFI DR 2w
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming Beneficial owner - - 628 628 0.00%
REFHLE EREBA
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy Beneficial owner - - 1,542 1,542 0.00%
FAERL EREBA
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny Beneficial owner 1,890,000 - 1,542 1,891,542 0.24%
RRESLHE EREBA
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason Beneficial owner - - 1,542 1,542 0.00%
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FEGRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Long positions (continued)

(b) Shares in associated corporation

As at 31 December 2008, the following directors held interests

in the shares of Jackin Video Cassette (Taiwan) Limited, a 99.9%

owned subsidiary of the Company as follows:

EERFETHRAERKR®D - HE
BRORESZEERXE (#)

S -NE )
(b) RIGE L EZ KRG

R-ZENE+—A=+—H THE=
BAEARAREEOI%ER BT A
BRI BB AR A 72 M
T

Number of shares

Personal Family
Name of director Capacity interests interests Total
R#OEE
EEHE 513 AR RikER Fohy
Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena Beneficial owner and 4 4 8
interest of spouse (note 1)
fa] IR £ BXRBERARRBER (Hf5E1)
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky Beneficial owner and 4 4 8
interest of spouse (note 2)
fa] $EB 58 5t 4 BEHEAARRBER (Mi5E2)
Ms. Lo Suk King Beneficial owner and 4 4 8
interest of spouse (note 2)
ERERZ+ BEEHRAARRBER (K3E2)
Notes: Bt = -

1. The shares are held by the spouse of Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena.

2. Ms. Lo Suk King is the spouse of Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky.

1. BRABDAAKRRZEZEEBRE-

2. EBRBLTRMEREE RS-
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
Long positions (continued)

(b) Shares in associated corporation (continued)

Directors’ Report
EEGHRE

EERFETHAERKRG - 1HE
RORESZEERXE (#)

)

e &)
(b) RIBBZLEZREG (&)

In addition to the above, the following Directors held interests in
the non-voting deferred shares of wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Company as at 31 December 2008 as follows:

Name of director

EEHR

Name of subsidiary

MEARBE

B EXPriESN THEER -_FTFT/N\F
+= A=t -AREARARZENBAT
ZEREEELERMDERIT

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FEEREEEERHHE

Jackin Magnetic Company Limited Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena

BEHERR AT AR +
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky
fa] $EB 58 5% 4

Jackin Video Cassette Co. Limited Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena

BREYEERAF A # IR 2 £
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky
fa] ¥ 58 % 4

In addition, a number of Directors held non-beneficial interests in

shares in certain subsidiaries of the Company as qualifying shares.

Save as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries
held by the Directors in trust for the Group, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short position
in any shares, underlying shares and debenture of the Company or
any of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
and none of the Directors or chief executives, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during

the year.

3,600 shares of HK$100 each
F M ME{E100/8 7T 2 B2 73,6000
3,200 shares of HK$100 each
FREE10078 7T 2 i 173,2000%

330,000 shares of HK$1 each
SR EE1E T Z B {7330,0008%
340,000 shares of HK$1 each
TR EE18 T 2 17 340,0000%

o ZREERBEARAETHEARA
2B ((FREERRN) 2B

BLEXMBEEELRESUERLA/AE
SEMAFMEB AR ZETRIEARDIN
RRAREZHLEIETHABBMERN KRR
SEEAAEEIR (ERREFLRPER
IZEXVER) 2 Bty « RO REST R
RIRE 5 R E GO 352K AT AL R
RIEFZERMANARE LT ARES
BHEZXGBRETUNNGARRR MBRZHAZ
EAREIAR MEEE TRITHAR
HWE 2 RBHARM T N\FRZ FRBER
BARRES ZEMEMN £FRITET
B % SRR o
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EERWE

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 26

to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company'’s share options

B

ARB 2B E 2 ER BN M B RRM T
26/

TREBEARBDZBEERBE_TTN\F+=

during the year ended 31 December 2008: R=+—BLEFEAZEH:
Share Cancelled/
option  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Name Date of share scheme  at beginning during during during atend  Subscription
of participants option granted category  of the year the year the year theyear  of the year price Exercise period
(Note (i) HKS
and (i)
BRE BRE RER RER REX
28% RHAH HEER HRTRE  REARL RERTE  H8H/&NM i RATE ABER TS
(M zE() AL
Raii)
Directors
Bz
Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena 25.1.2005 2005 6,872,628 - - - 6,872,628 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
CE350 e ZZERE-AZTHAE
“E-n%¥-A-THEA
Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky 25.1.2005 2005 6,872,628 - - - 6,872,628 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
R EE ZZERE-ACTEAE
—E-n%-A-+HEA
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 25.1.2005 2005 628 - - - 628 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
RiWEE ZEZRE-AZTHHZE
Z2-RE-AZTHA
5.7.2007 20078 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - 0.540 5.7.2007 - 4.7.2008
“ZTLELRRAE
—ZT/\$tAWA
6.9.2007 2007C 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - 0.460 6.9.2007 - 5.9.2008
ZZTEENASRAE
—ZZ\FNRRA
3,000,628 - - 3,000,000 628
Mr. Low Nyap Heng 25.1.2005 2005 628 - - 628 - 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
(Note (iii)) “ETRF-A-tHHAZE
B (M (i) ZB2-RE-AZTHA
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

BRE 2

Directors’ Report

EEHE

.

=

Share Cancelled/
option  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Name Date of share scheme  at beginning during during during atend  Subscription
of participants option granted category  of the year the year the year the year  of the year price Exercise period
(Note (i) HKS
and (i)
BhRE BRE RER RER REX
28% RAAH SHEER HRTE  REARL RERTE  #8H/&N% R ABER TS
(EE() BT
Rii)
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy 25.1.2005 2005 1,542 - - - 1,542 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
ZRERLT “TTRE-A-TEEER
“Z-n%¥-A-tHEA
5.7.2007 20078 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.540 5.7.2007 - 4.7.2008
“ETtELARAE
ZZE\ELAEA
6.9.2007 2007C 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.460 6.9.2007 - 5.9.2008
“ZZLENARRE
—“ZT/\fNARA
2,001,542 - - 2,000,000 1,542
Mr. Leung Ka Kui, 25.1.2005 2005 1,542 - - - 1,542 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
Johnny ZZERE-AZTRAE
2RMEE “E2-n%-A-+HEA
5.7.2007 20078 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.540 5.7.2007 - 4.7.2008
“ZTtEFLARAZE
2T \FtAmA
6.9.2007 2007C 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.460 6.9.2007 - 5.9.2008
ZZZLENARRE
ZZZ\ENARA
2,001,542 - - 2,000,000 1,542
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, 25.1.2005 2005 1,542 - - - 1,542 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
Jason “ETRE-A-tRAZE
RipmEE —E-R%-A-tHEA
5.7.2007 20078 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.540 5.7.2007 - 4.7.2008
TS5 LARAZE
ZZE\FtAmA
6.9.2007 2007C 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - 0.460 6.9.2007 - 5.9.2008
ZERLENAREE
“ZI\ENFTA
2,001,542 - - 2,000,000 1,542
Total for directors 22,751,138 - - 9,000,628 13,750,510

344
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FEEW/E

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRE#
Share Cancelled/
option  Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Name Date of share scheme  at beginning during during during atend  Subscription
of participants option granted category  of the year the year the year theyear  of the year price Exercise period
(Note (i) HKS
and (i)
BRE BRE RER RER REX
28% RAAH SHEER HRTE  REARL RERTE  #8H/&N% R ABER TS
(P EE() BT
i)
Employees 25.1.2005 2005 1,088,628 - 750,000 - 338,628 0.158 25.1.2005 - 24.1.2015
&g “ZZRF-A-tRAZE
“E-nE-ACTHEA
3.5.2007 2007A 23,650,000 - 1,400,000 - 22,250,000 0.293 3.5.2007 - 2.5.2009
(note (iv)
“ZTLERAZHE
ZEENERRZA
(F3E ()
5.7.2007 20078 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000 - 0.540 5.7.2007 - 4.7.2008
“ZTH5LARAE
ZZE\FtAmA
6.9.2007 2007C 9,500,000 - - 9,500,000 - 0.460 6.9.2007 - 5.9.2008
“ZZLENARRE
ZZTN\ENARA
Total for employees 41,238,628 - 2,150,000 16,500,000 22,588,628
EEAG
Percentage to total Company’s
shares in issue at end of the period
EANARBRERTROLBAS L
Total under New Scheme 63,989,766 - 2,150,000 25,500,628 36,339,138 4.55%
MEBIETRH
Notes: BT -
()  The 2005, 2007A, 2007B and 2007C options were granted under (i) 2005 * 2007A  2007B %2007 CH& i% #& Jh 18 1%

scheme adopted on 12 June 2004 (“the “New Scheme”).

(i) The closing price of the Company's shares immediately before 25
January 2005, 3 May 2007, 5 July 2007 and 6 September 2007,
the dates of grant of 2005, 2007A, 2007B and 2007C options, was
HK$0.159, HK$0.290, HK$0.495 and HK$0.435 respectively.

(iii)  Mr. Low Nyap Heng resigned as an Executive Director of the Company
on 21 March 2007.

(iv) 2007A options were extended one year to 2 May 2009.

(i)
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UNLISTED WARRANTS

The following table discloses movements in the Company's unlisted
warrants issued to the subscribers during the year ended 31 December
2008:

Directors’ Report

EEgHRE
FLHmRKRER
TREBHE-TE\FT-A=t+—A1L%F

EARRBMRBAEITIELTRREEZZ

Percentage to total

Outstanding Outstanding Company's shares
Date of at beginning Granted during  Exercised during atend Subscription in issue at end
warrant issued of the year the year the year of the year price Exercise period of the period
HK$
KR
RERERT
BARERAD FRNHRTR FRRY FRfRE ERHATHR RBER fixid RALHZEL
/%TE
24.3.2006 (note 1) 65,250,000 - - 65,250,000 0.130 24.3.2006 - 23.3.2009 8.17%
ZEEFZAZTHEA “EERE-ACtHRE
(MirzE1) ZEENFZR=T=H
27.6.2007 (note 2) 56,317,689 - - 56,317,689 0.554 28.12.2007 - 27.6.2010 7.05%

“EREFERACTLA
(M&E2)

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately before 24
March 2006 and 27 June 2007, the dates of issue, was HK$0.124 and
HK$0.610 respectively.

Note:

(1) The unlisted warrants were issued pursuant to the issuance of unsecured

notes under note 23(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(2)  The unlisted warrants were issued pursuant to the issuance of secured

notes under note 23(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

“EEHE+ZAZTNEE
“E-ZFXA=t+A

ARBIBRHBEEETH (N2 XEZA
B EZZEEEFRAFTER)AIZWT
BRI A0.1247 7L %0.6107%8 7T °

iG]

Fgr

(1) FE LR RN RS B IS R M 22233+
Pt R B HTEREAREMHET

(2) FELETRIRAEE NG E IR K M E23()F
Pt R B EITREAREMEIT-
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a part to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company

or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests of certain Directors and chief executives, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests

and short positions in the share capital of the Company.

BERODBEZ Z2LZH

B EXEBEZBRERABRIN ARB]HEL
] B8 X RN AR SLE R 2B AR
EEMREBARNRRASEAEMER 2Rk
B -

EEREEGHN2ER

ARRHEEFMMBRRANRAFE FRANFE
NEMRERERIT AR EFERNHEE
BEEARBZZERARL-

FERR

RZBENF+TZA=Z+—H BEARARE
B MHEGRDIE336HRET 2 T BIRRAMAT
T BRETEEREIBTRABZERIN AR
ATMAMBETIRRNARARRARZ A BEER

Rk -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions

Shares and underlying shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
EEERE

FERR #)
LS

EREARG R EER G
Number of
Number Percentage underlying Percentage
of issued of the issued shares held of the issued

ordinary share capital of  under unlisted share capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company warrants the Company
BREF LT
REERT HAQAERT RREIREZ GEXXFERT
RREEARB g4 ZERYE BREAES HERGBE BRAEB S
Complete Associates Limited Interest of controlled 178,194,000 22.31% - -
corporation (Note 1)
REHARZ S (PBEE1)
Chiu Kin Lok, Rocko Beneficial owner and interest 69,535,817 8.71% - -
of controlled corporation (Note 2)
e ERBEARZES AR #ER (PF5E2)
Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited Investment manager 64,474,000 8.07% 56,317,689 7.05%
RERRE
Edmond de Rothschild Investment manager 47,294,000 5.92% - -
Asset Management RERE
Hong Kong Limited
Notes: B 5T

1. The 178,194,000 shares are directly held by Sun Union Enterprises 1.
Limited which is wholly owned by Complete Associates Limited. The
share capital of Complete Associates Limited is beneficially owned
as to approximately 61.8% by Ms. Ho Yin King, Helena and as to
approximately 38.2% by Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky. Both Ms. Ho Yin King,

Helena and Mr. Ho Fai Keung, Jacky are Directors of the Company.

2. Mr. Chiu Kin Lok, Rocko was interested in 69,535,817 shares, of which 2.

entire shares were held by Art-Tech Enterprises Limited, a company in

which Mr. Chiu has 100% interest.

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had not been notified of any other interests or short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31

December 2008.

178,194,000/ It 10 B # A Complete
Associates Limited® & # A ZSun Union
Enterprises Limited¥ & ° Complete
Associates Limited Z IRZR 5 Bl (1 ] IR & +
N falEsg e A B G £61.8% N #138.2% &
o AR LT RAEREEHR/ETRAE
=

RS A EH 69,535,817k AR (D s - AR
2D B EREB100%E 2= 2 A A
Art-Tech Enterprises Limited#f °

B EXEBEN R-TZENF+ A=+ —
B BARFRREBEESRAEGIIFEIB6HKER
ZEZRRAMAR  RRB LT EHBRAR A
B iy RARRE B iy 2 M B R ZIR R

2008 i | BXEMREEFRAH

43



44

Directors’ Report
EERWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 13% of the Group’s
consolidated turnover and aggregate turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 40% of the

Group's consolidated turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 12% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 44% of the
Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any of the

five largest customers or suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors

are independent.

TEREFRHER

RBEE-_ZENE+_A=1+—RHILEFERN"
AEEGEAEPEEHEENEAEEGE S
EE213% MARBF AR EEEEBOL
REBGZEEETE240% °

REBEZE-_ZTZNFT+_A=+—BLEFERN"
AEBESANHEEEGEBREAEANEERE
BEZ12% MAANEERE L2 BIGREEY
EAREBRBRTE 244% o

MEBEMH SFTF IFEFZTAZHEAL
s AN A B B BT ANS % A b 2 PR A R
PR AREEFSHEREA TN EmiEs -

BYFHUTESZER

ARBCEESBIFNTEEREYR I IE
FEMRAEIBERABREF 2B I EME L Z
FERRBE ARBIRBR/BIUFNTEFTARE
ST o
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

26 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 31 of this Annual

Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, Mr. Leung Ka Kui, Johnny and
Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
management accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including

the review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Directors’ Report
EEGHRE

5 B B R

AEBREBE ZHFMBERDBAFME
ZRB-BEHRNMENHIE -

AAREEZ M HEE RS EAAT
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FEEW/E

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company's shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2008.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Yin King, Helena
Chairman

22 May 2009

RAFEAARL EEOEARBRE - KER
ARRREAAKNEA A SR E RS
AR ZBRE -

BErBRE

ARFZ EIRMAIKEFEAEN S R TH
BRI 2 X - READ AARL AR S
PR 4 AR -

RHANRERE
RBE-TT/\F+_A=t-RLFE2F
ARF-EBRBRHZARERE -
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LEREHHFHABREERTBEFAS L

RfE-
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Jackin International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Jackin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
53 to 163, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Stz BURD IR

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as explained below,
we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. However, because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient

appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

(@) The Group’s turnover and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2008 include sales and purchases of HK$105.1
million and HK$100.8 million respectively reported by one of
the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries. This subsidiary also
reported trade debtors of HK$110.0 million and trade creditors of
HK$1.7 million, which amounts have been included in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2008. In respect of
these transactions, we have been unable to obtain sufficient audit
evidence as to the delivery of the related goods. We also noted
that a substantial proportion of these transactions were recorded
being settled in cash and that certain other trade creditor and
debtor balances had been recorded as being settled by way of being
offset against each other or against debtors or creditors of other
Group companies (including those referred to below in paragraph
(c)) or by being transferred to other Group companies without
retaining sufficient documentary evidence. We were therefore
unable to rely on the Group's internal control system or to obtain
sufficient other satisfactory audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the completeness, existence and accuracy of the sales and
purchases asserted to have been undertaken by this subsidiary and
the corresponding trade debtor and trade creditor balances of this
subsidiary and the balances of other Group companies or as to
whether the unsettled trade debtors attributed to these transactions

are recoverable.

REENEE #)

BRI X PR AR R MM TR E 2 RFI5
BMEREBETESFMASHEMGN (FBRG
ER) ETEZ RFEAUBLRAETERR
& WHRERNTERZ USBRTEUEVER
REBTNFAEEMEABERBR - A HRE
TRFESNER B2 EE  RFIREEER
GRRMEENEZRENEREHERER
ZEEE
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(@) EEEBE_TTN\F+_A=1t—HIt
FENLZEBEMBEERARE EAFE
h-EEEMBARAREHHER.051
AT R IREEE.008B BT - ZM B AR
TR E YRR M BN R D B R R
TRI70BETT MELkeBCBER B
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion (continued)

(b)

Included in the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December
2008 were reported sales of HK$30.0 million to certain customers
by two of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries. In addition,
the outstanding receivable balances relating to these sales
amounted to HK$28.4 million as at 31 December 2008. We have
been unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence as to the delivery of
goods to these customers. There is no other satisfactory evidence
available to us to ascertain the validity of the recorded transactions,
and therefore we are unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether
the sales amount for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the
corresponding trade debtor balances have been accurately recorded
or as to whether the unsettled trade debtors attributed to these

transactions are recoverable.

In 2008, the Group entered into contracts to purchase technical
know-how and distribution channels of HK$26.0 million and
HK$15.8 million respectively. Management has asserted that the
amounts due to the suppliers under these contracts have been
settled by being offset against certain trade debtor balances of
a subsidiary of the Group as referred to in paragraph (a) above.
Management has also charged an amortisation expense of HK$1.3
million to the income statement during the year in respect of these
items. We have been unable to obtain satisfactory audit evidence
as to the asserted purchases of the intangible assets or to satisfy
ourselves as to the relationships, if any, among the suppliers
of the intangible assets, the trade debtors and the Group. We
are therefore unable to satisfy ourselves as to the existence and
accuracy of the cost of the intangible assets and the corresponding
settlement of trade debtor balances and whether the amortisation
for the year attributed to the intangible assets has been accurately

presented.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B S 1% BURD IR
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B Stz BURD IR

Basis for disclaimer of opinion (continued)

(d)

Included in the additions to property, plant and equipment
of HK$28.5 million during the year were property, plant and
equipment recorded at HK$15.6 million which were asserted to
have been purchased from a supplier who is one of the asserted
providers of the technical know-how as mentioned in (c) above.
In addition, as at 31 December 2008, the Group had prepaid
deposits for property, plant and equipment of HK$4.0 million to this
same supplier. There is no satisfactory evidence available to us to
ascertain whether these transactions were on an arm'’s length basis
or whether these amounts paid to the supplier relate solely to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, we were
unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence to support the accuracy
and valuation of the additions to property, plant and equipment
during the year and the relevant prepayments as at 31 December

2008.

Included in the inventories balances as at 31 December 2008 are
inventories in respect of the remanufacture and sale of computer
printing and imaging products segment amounting to HK$204.7
million. Due to deficiencies in the internal costing systems for
inventories, we were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the accuracy and valuation of the inventories
amount as at 31 December 2008 and the accuracy of cost of sales

of this segment for the year ended 31 December 2008.

We have not yet completed our audit procedures over significant
transactions or events which may have occurred between the period
from 1 January 2009 to the date of this auditor’s report as required
under Hong Kong Standard of Auditing 560, Subsequent events,
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
As a result, we are unable to form an opinion on whether
significant transactions or events which occurred during the period
from 1 January 2009 to the date of this auditor’s report were
properly accounted for and adequately disclosed in the financial

statements.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion (continued)

(9)

Had we been able to satisfy ourselves in respect of the matters
mentioned in items (a) to (f) above, adjustments might have been
found to be necessary which would have had a consequential
impact on the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and
its net loss for the year ended 31 December 2008 and may have
resulted in additional information being disclosed in the financial
statements as to the nature of these transactions and any material

non-adjusting post balance sheet events.

As explained in notes 1(b), 22 and 23 to the financial statements,
the Group has breached certain loan and note covenants. It is
the directors’ belief that they will successfully negotiate with the
Group's creditor bankers and note holders to secure continual
financing and the directors have also advised that a third party has
indicated that it will provide financial support to the Group. The
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which is dependent on (i) the successful outcome of
the Group's negotiations with its creditor bankers and note holders
to secure continual financing and (ii) the availability of funding
from the third party, in order for the Group to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due and to finance its future working
capital and financial requirements. The financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would be necessary if the Group fails
to obtain financial support from bankers and other creditors. We
consider that adequate disclosures have been made. However, the
uncertainties surrounding the outcome of these negotiations with
its creditor bankers and note holders and the availability of funding
from the third party raise significant doubt about the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Disclaimer of opinion: disclaimer on view given by
the financial statements

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion on the
financial statements as to whether they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
as to whether the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 May 2009
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Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net (loss)/income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs

Loss from a legal claim

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

(Loss)/earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

The notes on pages 59 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

&R

E7

H A

Hith (B1R) aEFE
2 8RR

TTHE R

BB R

cg (5] a8
% ER
FRREZER

BRBiAT (1) EF
P33

RRTERERR
FEfh (B518) %A

SR (E#E) B
BN

2008

$'000
—EREN\F
Fr
455,531

(340,503)

115,028
5,758
(30)
(26,499)
(91,265)
(128,369)

(125,377)
(26,582)

(151,959)
(7.828)

(159,787)

(20.0) centsfll

(18.9) centsfll

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z _—ZFZEN\F+-F=1+—HALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(KBTI
2007
$'000
—EELF
F
418,159

(274,692)

143,467
5,285
120
(24,501)
(55,745)

68,626
(25,205)
(7,900)

35,521
(2,045)

33,476

4.5 centsfll

4.0 centsfll
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At 31 December 2008 HR=—ZFF/\FE+=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (£ 7t 55 )

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
—BENEF —EELE
B = T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WEREE 13(a) 63,740 113,225
Intangible assets ERVEE 14 82,290 49,165
Goodwill EES 15 - 39,545
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAE 27(b) 1,132 =
147,162 201,935
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 223,242 196,319
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A W FRIA 18 193,676 245,747
Pledged deposits BT 19 1,554 1,228
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEY 20 23,123 39,181
Current tax recoverable A Y =] 7 IE 27(a) 155 =
441,750 482,475
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b BT 5RIA 21 88,457 57,276
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 22 156,938 146,653
Notes payable FET R % 23 108,367 =
Obligations under finance leases MEUHHESRE 24 9,879 7,108
Current tax payable FEATBEIR 27(a) 10,485 7,111
374,126 218,148
Net current assets RBEEFEE 67,624 264,327
Total assets less current liabilities ®REERBARBEE 214,786 466,262
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 22 21,954 46,349
Notes payable AN 23 - 76,086
Obligations under finance leases MEUEEEE 24 7,843 5,323
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE 27(b) 6,537 1,656
36,334 129,414
NET ASSETS EERE 178,452 336,848
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R % 28(a)
Share capital A& < 79,879 79,664
Reserves e 98,573 257,184
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 178,452 336,848

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 May KHEZFESGR_ZTZNFREA-_T-_HBHER

2009. (8 Sk
HO YIN KING, HELENA HO FAI KEUNG, JACKY
Directors Directors
] IR Al ¥ 5
EFE EFE
The notes on pages 59 to 163 form part of these financial statements. F59H EF 1638 AT A AR SRR A AH

B ER A7



At 31 December 2008 HR=—ZZ/\F+=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( L& 7T 5% )

2008 2007
Note $000 $'000
—2ENF —ETtE
B = T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR HIEE 16 39,172 39,172
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWIKIE 18 279,270 356,221
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEY 20 67 127
279,337 356,348
Current liabilities FREBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H i fE 1~ ;1B 21 58,463 57,847
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 22 40 =
Notes payable FET R & 23 108,367 =
166,870 57,847
Net current assets REBEEFE 112,467 298,501
Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Notes payable FE R & 23 - 76,086
NET ASSETS EERE 151,639 261,587
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RA R # 5 28(b)
Share capital [N 79,879 79,664
Reserves G 71,760 181,923
TOTAL EQUITY A 151,639 261,587

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 May

2009.

KEHEFER _ZEAFEA-T-HA#LER

RAETE -

HO YIN KING, HELENA HO FAI KEUNG, JACKY

Directors Directors
7] IR 17T ¥ 58
EZE EF

HS9EEE 163E A LRI i A AR B HR 0/
Rt -

The notes on pages 59 to 163 form part of these financial statements.



For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z _—ZFZE/\F+-_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (£ 7t 55 )

Total equity at 1 January

Net income recognised directly
in equity:

Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong

(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of

properties, net of deferred tax

Net (loss)/profit for the year

Total recognised income

and expense for the year

Movements in equity arising from
capital transactions:

Shares issued under share option
scheme

Shares issued on exercise of warrants

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

Issue of the Secured Notes and warrants

Total equity at 31 December

R—A—BzREDRAH

EERRERRZ

WA ERE:
BRERBFINGG B A A
MBBEMEEZ
N ZE
HMBRBEERERYE 2 EMR
(B#8) &

AEE (FR) RFFER

REECRIARAR
B 48

BERERMEEZ
ESEEE:
RIEBRE BT RN

TTERIAEE M &7 2t
AR A EE R BERZ
R 5

BHITEEREE MR REE

Rt+t-A=+—BzERBEE

The notes on pages 59 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

2008

Note $000
—E2ENF

1= T
336,848

28(a) 1,258
28(a) (1,098)
160
(159,787)
(159,627)

28(a) 528
28(a) -
28(a) 703
28(a) -
1,231

28(a) 178,452

2007
$'000
—EZLF
F

277,190

1,684

2,740

4,424

33,476

37,900

6,667
9,391

4,300
1,400

21,758

336,848

FS9OAEE163EMBEMMERAN B RERMNA
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z _—ZFZEN\F+-F=1+—HALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( L& 7T 5% )

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
—2ENF i
Bt T T
Operating activities REXEK
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B51R) s A (151,959) 35,521
Adjustments for: S TFIIEBER 2 A% :
— Depreciation of property, plant — ¥ BEREETE
and equipment 5(e) 17,607 14,287
— Amortisation of intangible assets — MmN EEEH 5(e) 8,038 5,520
— Impairment loss on property, —WE KERRHEREERE
plant and equipment 5(c) 59,294 -
— Impairment loss on intangible — BV EERERBE
assets 5(c) 637 -
— Impairment loss on goodwill —EEREEE 5(c) 39,545 =
— Impairment loss on trade and — B 5 & E B YR IA
other receivables BB E B 5(c) 28,893 =
— Equity-settled share-based —UARAEERD BER 2
payment expenses EBRAX 5(b) 703 4,300
— Interest income —FLE A 4 (350) (809)
— Interest expenses —F B 21,008 17,760
— Finance charges on obligations -MEHHEEAENMBER
under finance leases 5(a) 968 1,022
— Loss/(gain) on sale of property, —LEWE BEREE
plant and equipment EE () 4 30 (120)
— Foreign exchange loss — SN 1R 565 607
Operating profit before changes EEESREA 2 KERF
in working capital 24,979 78,088
Increase in inventories FEEM (26,923) (67,361)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K& H fh & 4z 51 I8 5 hn (18,622) (11,909)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 & H e 58
other payables #mn,/ Crd) 31,181 (14,996)
Cash generated from/(used in) REEEEE (BA)ZHRS
operations 10,615 (16,178)
Tax paid [RENEZRE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —RE (B BEFNER
refunded/(paid) 323 (219)
— Overseas tax paid — B8N IR (865) (57)

Net cash generated from/(used in) E&EKEE (8H)2
operating activities HeRHE 10,073 (16,454)



For the year ended 31 December 2008 #Z - ZEZE/\F+-HA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( £ 7z 55 )

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for development costs

Proceeds from sale of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid
Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases
Net proceeds from issue of new shares
Net proceeds from issue of the Notes
Proceeds from new bank and
other borrowings
Repayment of bank and
other borrowings
Capital element of finance lease
rental paid

Increase in pledged deposits

Net cash (used in)/generated from

financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31 December

REXEK
B KA B

BEME BERRB AR

B B PR AR 2 A5 3R

HEWX BB RRERER

REXBRHRA 2R EFE

BEED
ERFHE

ENRECHEERENTBER

BITHRZ TS RIRF 8
BOIRBZMERIAEE
FgRITREMEER
PS5 IR
EERETRAMEER

ENmETEENAD AN

REEEGHYER Pl

MEEH (BA) EEZ
REFE

RERAESEEY
R ) /48 o 3 48

R—A—BzRERREEEY

HIEERSHTE

R+=ZA=+—-B2
HERBEESZEEY

A

The notes on pages 59 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

2008

Note $000
—E2ENF

1= T

350

(11,132)

150

(10,632)

(19,927)

(968)

28(a) 528

31,200

617,211

(636,256)

(12,033)
(326)

(20,571)

(21,130)

34,043

137

20 13,050

2007
$'000
—EZLF
F

809

(12,618)
(17,487)

120

(29,176)

(17,435)
(1,022)
16,058
77,161
98,478

(82,071)

(13,967)
(1,228)

75,974

30,344

3,253

446

34,043

FSIOREF163EMBMME /AN B RERMA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

(a) E/REH

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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(IEESFERAE])RMAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

Iltems included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity. The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (HK$), rounded to the

nearest thousand except for per share data.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in

the accounting policies set out below:

- derivative financial instruments (see note 1(e)); and

—  leasehold land and buildings (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(b) B HMR z2mREE
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in

the next year are discussed in note 35.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the future liquidity of the Group in view of
its consolidated net loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of $159,787,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008. In addition, the Group breached certain
financial covenants of its banking facilities and of two bonds
subscription agreements during the year ended 31 December
2008. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore that it
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the directors are
of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance its future

working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) the Group has been actively negotiating with its creditor

bankers to secure continual support;

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

(b) U BHRZEWMREE (&)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

(i) the note holders have confirmed that they would not

request early redemption of the notes; and

(iii) the Group has been actively discussing with prospective
investors to obtain new working capital and a third party
has committed to provide financial assistance to the

Group as is necessary to maintain it as a going concern.

It is the directors’ belief that they will successfully negotiate
with creditor bankers and note holders to secure continual
financing and the third party will execute its financial support
commitment in order for the Group to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due and to finance its future working

capital and financial requirements.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments

has not been reflected in the financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

(b) U BHRZEWMREE (&)
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(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested

annually for impairment (see note 1(i)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(c)

(d)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(e) Derivative financial instruments

(f)

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are stated
in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair

values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in reserves. The only exceptions
are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset

immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged to

profit or loss.
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(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus

is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings 2.5% or over the term

of the leases

if less than 40 years

Plant and machinery 10% — 20%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset

and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are

available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Capitalised development costs 10 years
— Capitalised technical know-how 5-10 years
— Capitalised distribution channels 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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(h) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or

taken over from the previous lessee.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(h) HEEE (&)
(i) REBEHNBAZEE

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payment, of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 1(i). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(i) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor.

The impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’'s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

(i) EERE

()

EZREMERNERE

BRRAIBHEKARTRZE S
REMERFEREEEER
mE NEEEEBRENTEE
o

MENFBEBEBRAEELE
BNA—IES A E 2 BEREIR

- BEBABBREMBRE:

- ERAH flamBHEES
BRMEHAE

—  EBATESERERRES
Hi BB R

— RIS EARERE
52 BABBEHEB ABR
TRINEE -

WBER 2 EBERX  BERE
TR & 7 2 BRE{E SR FT AR KRR
ERERMBEEREERAN X
(AEVNRERZSEEERE
ZEBRNX)BROBEMZZ
AT E - IR AR
BEEDEBRUNRBRREE  §
ARAR L 38 HRAA I » DA B 3 K fE
B RS ARE - RIS TR
R 5F i - % 2 R FF Rl (E 2 W 715
BEZARRERENRELS
HAARNEUEERBREBZE
EZBEBRERAE-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts);
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any

indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.
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(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)(i)
and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the

financial year to which the interim period relates.

(j) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

()]

(k)

()

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated

at cost less impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.
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(m) Compound financial instruments

Financial instruments in respect of interest-bearing borrowings
and warrants issued simultaneously under a composite
arrangement, where the number of shares to be issued under
the warrants does not vary with changes in fair value, are
deemed to be a compound financial instrument and accounted

for as follows:

— At initial recognition the liability component of the
compound financial instrument is measured as the
present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
stand-alone liabilities. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

— The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. In the event of an
early redemption of the liability component before its
contractual or expected maturity, any difference between
the carrying value of the liability component and its
redemption value is recognised as a gain or loss on

redemption in profit or loss.

—  The equity component is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the warrants are exercised or lapsed. If the
warrants are exercised, the capital reserve is transferred
to share premium as part of consideration for the shares
issued. If the warrants lapse, the capital reserve is

released directly to retained profits.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 1(r), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

(n)

(o)

(p)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(p) EERA (&)
(i) ZBREBEBEFEIT

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the appropriate
valuation techniques, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(q) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised

in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

(p) EERA (&)

(iii) # L IEEE 7
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(q) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(q) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:
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(q) Income tax (continued)

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

()

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 1(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially

recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. When the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(s) Derecognition of financial assets

(t)

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to

receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where

the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

()

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in

the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(v)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are

recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that operation is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating decisions, or has joint control over the

Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in

which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit or employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(x) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the

purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations and an
Amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group and the Company.

However, none of these developments is relevant to the Group's

and the Company's operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 36).

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the remanufacture and sale
of computer printing and imaging products, manufacture and sale
of data media products and distribution of branded data media

products from third party vendors.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers
and is stated after deducting goods returned and trade discounts.
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—EENE —ETtF
F5 Fi

Remanufacture and sale of RIREERIHEBKITH R
computer printing and imaging products MEEMD 310,298 283,218

Manufacture and sale of BUERHEHBRERER

data media products 104,095 83,195
Distribution of data media products 7 H BRI RS E 41,138 51,746
455,531 418,159
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B % ¥ K MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/INCOME 4 HW AR (EE) WiaE

F R
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
LTI —ETtE
Fr F5
Other revenue H g A
Commission income e A 84 645
Interest income FEWA 350 809
Operating lease rental income in respect of ~ Fi/E M zs & & H OHE & WA
plant and machinery 3,600 3,600
Gain on foreign exchange contracts HNE B 4 UK Z 945 119
Others HAty 779 112
5,758 5,285
Other net (loss)/income Hith (F8) WEFE
(Loss)/gain on sale of property, HEWE BWER
plant and equipment R (BR) ek (30) 120
5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 ®BaAr (JE?TE\)/;I\TJI*U

Al (BR) SaFEmkr (ER)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—zENE —Ets
Fr s
(a) Finance costs: (@ HBER:
Interest on bank advances and BARAFABBREEZ
other borrowings wholly repayable RITBHRHMEEF S
within five years 11,765 13,335
Interest on the Notes SR A 9,206 4,225
Interest on other borrowings H Ath 5 & F1 8 37 200
Finance charges on obligations MEMHEEEREZMBER
under finance leases 968 1,022
Amortisation of debt assignment B E R
expenses 1,881 2,000
Bank charges HRITE A 3,512 3,031
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss BN (W) /B PE (787) 11,552
26,582 25,205
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ¥ 2% Bt 5F
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&% )
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BiAT (BE), &F )
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—2TNF —ERtE
Fr T
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIRA:
Contributions to defined contribution JE R M FOR KRG 8189 5K
retirement plans 1,330 1,130
Equity-settled share-based payment INRAGBERD RER 2
expenses B2 703 4,300
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe ITEREMEF 80,250 53,957
82,283 59,387
(c) Impairment losses: (0 BIEEE:
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - BB KRF
(note 13(d)) (B 3E13(d)) 59,294 -
— Intangible assets (note 14) —mEEE (ME14) 637 =
— Goodwill (note 15) — & (3E15) 39,545 =
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 Rk EMERFIA 28,893 =
128,369 -
(d) Loss from a legal claim: (d) ZEERREZESE:
During the year ended 31 December HE-_TT+F+=A
2007, the Group recognised a loss =+—BIEFE  AEERE
of $7,900,000 in respect of the legal BERARERREZEXM
costs and interest paid under a legal ME(EEZERBEZERER
claim when the outcome of the legal R MR ) B #3727,900,000
claim became final and conclusive. o - B - 7,900
(e) Other items: (e) EAMIER :
Amortisation of intangible assets mIyEEEH 8,038 5,520
Depreciation e
- owned assets —BEERE 14,594 11,766
— assets held under finance leases —RREUHERECEE 3,013 2,521
Auditors’ remuneration ¥ & RN B & 2,786 2,298
Operating lease charges BEMEZRERNER
in respect of properties 12,895 8,666
Cost of inventories * FER A 340,503 274,692
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B % ¥ K MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(92}

& Cost of inventories includes $62,664,000 (2007: $47,871,000)

relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses

and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b)

for each of these types of expenses.

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

INCOME STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income

statement represents:

#

N DL

B oA

(E518) EF

FEMANEE2,664,000T ( T+
% :47,871,0007T) BB TR A - T E &
BRI REERNEBRE]H He%8

,u‘fl‘

IMBERM ES0)HM BT IEE B4
BEZBEBREAN-
REGEEBEREREYZMEH

(a) REEBREREN Z2HE

ny -

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—EENE —ETEF
Fr T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AFEERE-FBIEBH
Provision for the year REEHEAE 6,052 2,567
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE (BEEE)
prior years BETRE (5,132) 153
| ______920
Current tax — Overseas AEERHIE-EH
Provision for the year REFEEAE 2,751 48
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFEREBTR 920 =
2,841 48
Deferred tax ELERE
Origination and reversal of TR R EE RED
temporary differences 4,067 |  (723)
7,828 2,045
In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced RZZBZNF-A BEBRNEMH

a decrease in the Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%

applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from
the year ended 31 December 2008. This decrease is taken into
account in the preparation of the Group’s and the Company's
2008 financial statements. Accordingly, the provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is calculated at 16.5% (2007:

17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
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BMEBEDRERZ G ERRER 2
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(a) Taxation in the consolidated income

statement represents: (continued)

Taxation for the subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at the
appropriate current rates for taxation ruling in the PRC.
According to the income tax law that was passed by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 (“New Tax
Law"”), the PRC corporate income tax rate has been revised
from 33% to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008. In
addition, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors of the PRC subsidiaries. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investor. Pursuant to a double tax arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend payment
from the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in respect of their profits

derived after 1 January 2008 .

Under the New Tax Law effective from 1 January 2008 and in
accordance with “Notification of the State Council on Carrying
out the Transitional Preferential Policies concerning Enterprise
Income Tax" (Guo Fa [2007] No.39) promulgated by the State
Council on 26 December 2007, an entity established before
16 March 2007 that was entitled to preferential tax treatment
prior to the New Tax Law is subject to transitional tax rates
beginning in 2008 before the new corporate income tax
rate of 25% applies. In respect of certain PRC subsidiaries of
the Group, namely Feitian Magnetic Information—Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.,, RYF B ERITENEMERLE

(Shenzhen Afex Print Image Ltd.), Bk/& Fim LR4T ENFEM B R
/] (Zhuhai Afex Print Image Ltd.) which enjoyed a reduced
tax rate of 15% in 2007, the transitional tax rates are 18%,
20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012

and onwards, respectively.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(a) REEBREREI ZHE

Ri#)

A FR B A B B A ] A B T ) 4 BR R
BIMBEABETE - REZBEAR
REAXGR_ZZTLF=A+ A8

MEPTSBOEG ([3BHE]) - RER
EFERREE T NF—F—H
RBEH33% N A ZE25% o bt oh -+ A E
MEBARZEBIMNEEERN ZREE
BAN10%TEIFEL - fim R BB IF MG E
EZRIEERZBARBERRE -
Bl 7] fE AR EUE 2 TR R R < R R E
HEBZB2EEGRTH A58
BRAEEZFENBRARER =T
ENF-A—BRZEMNAZAZE
A R B3R5 % 2 TEMB R A TEMHL -

BREA-_FTTN\F-—A—HEERZ
ML RBBEBRR-_TTLF
TZR=F+ X BHEHKZ EBRAR
EHCEMERBAEEEBRRNBE
ANy (BK[2007]39%%) "R =TTt
F=ZA+ A BRIKIRIBEAE
AMZABEREBCEBEN T

SERBE25%EAMKE T \F
Fth 2 BB R R MM TSR - 3t
AEEBETHEZHERAIBEH A
ORYD AR AT ORI Fm L ORFTED
FEMBRQ A RIKEFmLIRITOE
MERARIN-ZZTLFZHEEM
E15% - —FEENF ZZTTNF-

—EF . _F2——FKk-FT—=
FR-BEFHXDRIR18% 20%
22% ~ 24% F25% °

%

NHi

A



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rates:

(a) REREEEREN ZHIE
R(#)
H i ig oM B A AR IE AR S ER
B2 BITRER -

(b) ZEABEFE 2HEMRX
HEHEM (FE) B HER
mh:

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—EEN\F —TTLF
Fr T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (518D R F (151,959) 35,521
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, &ZBEEHIE 2 (E18) % F
calculated at rates applicable to (losses)/ ZERABERAFENRETIE
profits in the countries concerned (F58) mfz 2EBE (24,961) 2,438
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TNANBRS 2 BIEFE 45,160 3,361
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRERMBAZHELE (5.717) (5,024)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERARBARBEEZ
not recognised B E - 1,117
Tax effect of unused tax losses not BAEFERBEREFA
recognised in prior years but utilised FAZARDABBEEZ
during the year M E (1,612) =
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFE (BF) BETR (5,042) 153
Actual tax expense B R IA R X 7,828 2,045



7 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

E=MeREBEFERFEOIFI61GE

HAREE - I

B %5 ¥ & MY o

(LT HIMR)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based 2008
fees in kind contributions Sub-total payments Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(note)
Me- NRAEE
)= 1954 RBRGTE RHAEHR —BINE
EEHd LB e Mt ZEAEX @act
Fr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
(HzE)
Executive directors BOEE
Ho Yin King, Helena B35 - 4,728 12 4,740 - 4,740
Ho Fai Keung, Jacky EpE:A - 3,283 12 3,295 - 3,295
Cheung Sze Ming R - 1,548 12 1,560 - 1,560
Lo Suk King &R - 998 12 1,010 - 1,010
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
Li Sau Hung, Eddy 58 200 - - 200 - 200
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2R 200 - - 200 - 200
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason g 200 - - 200 - 200
600 10,557 48 11,205 - 11,205
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
Directors"  and benefits scheme share-based 2007
fees inkind  contributions Sub-total payments Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(note)
M- PARA B 8
2R RIRGE BRABER —TELF
EEHe EMH = L Nt ZBRBRX @t
T T T T T T
(HzE)
Executive directors BOEE
Ho Yin King, Helena A IR - 4,728 12 4,740 = 4,740
Ho Fai Keung, Jacky EpE: - 4,593 12 4,605 - 4,605
Cheung Sze Ming R - 2,072 12 2,084 271 2,355
Lo Suk King &R - 1,024 12 1,036 = 1,036
Low Nyap Heng Elled-d - 195 = 195 - 195
Independent non-executive directors BYEHTES
Li Sau Hung, Eddy &R 300 - - 300 180 480
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny 2R 320 - - 320 180 500
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason F5 5 280 - - 280 180 460
900 12,612 43 13,560 811 14,371
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B 7% ¥ K MY ot

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 fE)

7

8

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the Company'’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options was measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions
as set out in note 1(p)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph in the directors’

“share option scheme” report and

note 26.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2007:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2007:

one) individuals are as follows:

7

EE
i

=
HX =

ER%

TLF HE)

& )

EEERARBRBREAETETE
EZBEBAELE ZEEREZEE
TIRBEAEEURORER 2 T HR
S0 &R A8 - SR HTEE1(p)(i)

w

ERYEANFS EEERENE
BREOEZEGRREEB CEREFR
[FERARHE ST &I | oh ey BRE R PRE26 3%

o 58

R
e

EEFAL

ReFALT BRE=Z%E% (=%
REEEZMEFIERH

ATEE -HHBME (ZET+F: —FR)R
SEHALTZMESEBEEIINT

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
LI —TEtE
o T
Salaries and other emoluments e kEMEES 3,004 1,128
Share-based payments LR RERE K - =
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET B3R 108 12
3,112 1,140

The emoluments of the two (2007: one) individuals with the highest ME(ZZEELF: —R)RaH AL M

emoluments are within the following bands: SN FTIERER :

2008 2007
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EF T Y ErT ey
$ JT A8 A
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1 -
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10

11

Notes to the Financial Statements

o %5 ¥ & MY o

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of $111,179,000 (2007: $4,183,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

DIVIDENDS 10

No payment of dividends has been proposed by the board of
directors of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December

2008 (2007: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

Company of $159,787,000 (2007: profit of $33,476,000)

\\n
/

E

ARERRREEGES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 5 5E)

9 J¢ Tﬁiﬁﬂxﬁﬁgﬁiﬂ%ka)

& (F18) & A

RARBMBEHRERANREZER

SR (F57) B
(a) EREX (FE)  BEF

111,179,0007_E(_7 T+ 4F 4,183,000

ARBEEFETERZREHE_TTNF
T A=+—HLEFEZRBE(ZEZ+

FREAN(BE) B TRAR
178 # 2= % 3R B 1 85 18159,787,000

L (ZZFZFLF % 33,476,0007T)

and the weighted average of ordinary shares of 797,524,317 MFABETERRZ MEFHK
shares (2007: 752,010,650 shares) in issue during the year, 797,524 317 (ZBZLF:
calculated as follows: 752,010,650 f& 1 ) st E T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EBERZINEF K&
2008 2007
LI N: —ETLA
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HZBEBITER 796,636,817 687,462,817
Effect of new shares issued 1R A e ot 8 B 1T
under share option scheme k2 2
(note 28(c)(ii)) (B 5E28(c)(i) ) 887,500 20,764,166
Effect of new shares on exercise of warrants 1718 R IR #E 38 M 217
(note 28(c)(iii)) Mz 8
(B FE28(c)(ii) ) - 43,783,667
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—RAz2EBER
ordinary shares at 31 December hnEF 5 AR 8 797,524,317 752,010,650
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(b) BR#EE (BR) BRI

FREE (BB BRDEARRA
L 38 i A% 5 & {5 5 #8159,787,0007T
(ZZEZ %% HI33,476,0007T)
TElR s mETFHRE (BE)
843,974,265 M (Z T4 :
844,075,319/ 7 ) st E 4T -

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $159,787,000 (2007: profit of $33,476,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) of
843,974,265 shares (2007: 844,075,319 shares), calculated as

follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BERZINEFIRE (#E)
(diluted)
2008 2007
BN =t T JS

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
in relation to warrants issued

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
under the Company's share option

scheme for nil consideration

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares (diluted) at 31 December

R+ZA=+—RAzL@k
IR T 15 R 8L
FHAEBETRAREZEZRA
BRTLEARIVE
BB AR A R AR A
BrREBTEBERZE

Rt-ZR=+—RzEBERKR
AOHE 15 B B (#5E)

797,524,317 752,010,650
8,474,868 68,610,253
37,975,080 23,454,416
843,974,265 844,075,319

DEEBERDIEAREZ EB LR D HE

Sle RN BEFHERBEED BBETLA -
EREBDBEMBYERNEE 2 AT
BHENER-

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
and geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen
as the primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the

Group's internal financial reporting.



12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
three operating divisions — remanufacture and sale of computer
printing and imaging products, manufacture and sale of data media
products and distribution of data media products. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment

information.

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 7

B %5 ¥ & MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

REBME SEEE NN EZEEE
BRI -BREEREEEKITORYGE
B S R E SR REES RS B
BEER ZERANAEEEIENEE
CFE T S

Segment information about these business segments is presented REEBH 2 HERDT
below.
Remanufacture
and sale of ~ Manufacture
computer and sale Distribution
printing and of data of data Inter-
imaging media media segment
products products products elimination ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
$000 §'000 §'000 §000 §000 §000
BREER
HEEH RER
10k HEHE FHEE
YBER REER REER AHHH KRB Fxs)
Fr Fr ) S T ST
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-ZIN%
TZA=t-ALEE
Revenue from external customers REMPE P 2 e 310,298 104,095 41,138 - - 455,531
Inter-segment revenue Pk - 2,430 - (2,430) - -
Total BE 310,298 106,525 41,138 (2,430) - 455,531
Segment result PHEE 73,318 (61,926) (45,504) - - (34,112)
Unallocated operating income AAREERARRR
and expenses (91,265)
Loss from operations LEER (125,377)
Finance costs HBER (26,582)
Loss before taxation BRAIEE (151,959)
Income tax FrEH (7,828)
Loss after taxation TEER (159,787)
Depreciation and amortisation ERREREH
for the year 14,604 10,843 48 - 150 25,645
Impairment losses for the year FRZHERE 17,408 62,797 48,164 - - 128,369
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Business segments (continued) E ¥ Pk NE )
Remanufacture
and sale of  Manufacture
computer and sale Distribution
printing and of data of data Inter-
imaging media media segment
products products products elimination Unallocated  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RREBER
HEEM BER
TR HERE PEBE
YHRER REEM REER Rk FAR Ga
i i T i r S
Year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-ZFt#
TZAZ+-ALFE
Revenue from external customers  RESNIEF 2 Mz 283,218 83,195 51,746 = - 418,159
Inter-segment revenue Rk = 9,198 = (9,198) = =
Total k] 283,218 92,393 51,746 (9,198) - 418,159
Segment result EES 101,589 17,101 5,519 = - 124,209
Unallocated operating income RAEEEWARRES
and expenses (55,583)
Profit from operations T 68,626
Finance costs HEER (25,205)
Loss from a legal claim ERRECEE (7,900)
Profit before taxation B8 750 i i ) 35,521
Income tax s (2,045)
Profit after taxation Bt 33,476
Depreciation and amortisation ERFERBY
for the year 8,693 10,941 45 - 128 19,807
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Business segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2008

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure incurred

during the year

BE-2ENf
tTZA=t-RLFE

NHBEE

ANERAEBE

BEE

NEbEE

AORERAEE

BAE

FREEZERRAX

Remanufacture
and sale of
computer
printing and
imaging
products

$'000
RRBER#EE
ERTER
HBRER

FTr

485,907

66,053

70,048

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

Ko@)

Manufacture
and sale Distribution
of data of data
media media
products products
$'000 $'000

HER
HEHE DHEE
BEEM BEEM
Fr Fr
66,882 31,296
21,002 5,820
188 20

Consolidated
$'000

)
Tr

584,085
4,827

588,912

92,875
317,585

410,460

70,256
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 ﬁﬁ‘B%&%f
Business segments (continued) XX )
Remanufacture
and sale of Manufacture
computer and sale Distribution
printing and of data of data
imaging media media
products products products Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RRBERHEE BUER
BIITED K2 $HE BUR D HBIR
THREM REEm RESEM Ra
T Fr T T

Year ended 31 December 2007 HEZE-ZEZtHF
+ZHB=+—-HLEE

Segment assets DEHEE 422,030 147,053 73,748 642,831
Unallocated corporate assets RAOERBIEE 41,579
Total assets BWEE 684,410

Segment liabilities HEEE 42,881 8,735 4,629 56,245
Unallocated corporate liabilities &2 EAFERE 291,317
Total liabilities REE 347,562
Capital expenditure incurred FRNELEZERRAY

during the year 36,163 5,509 22 41,694
Geographical segments i & 7 &8
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC including AEBEBEEMRTE (BIERB)
Hong Kong.
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, EERMESLERF  DBRERER
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of ZAEMES S HDHEERE AR A
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the BREEMEMWRE H -

geographical location of the assets.
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Geographical segments (continued)

Revenue from external customers

Asia
— the PRC including Hong Kong
— other regions

Europe

North and South America

Others

Segment assets

Asia
— the PRC including Hong Kong
— other regions

Europe

North and South America

Capital expenditure incurred
during the year

Asia
— the PRC including Hong Kong

North and South America

RENBEF Z2 Wz

M
—HE(BREE)
—HfbilE

=

Rl

H

TEEE

=M
—HE(BRFEEB)
—H &

BOM

BIE

FAELEZEFRMAX

M
—HE(BREE)
Bl

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

& DB (4)
2008
$'000

—EBN\F
Fr

199,864
68,705
46,415

140,128

419

455,531

575,673

2,058
11,181

588,912

70,220
36

70,256

(LT HIMR)

2007
$'000
—ETLF

Tt

214,759
87,492
39,070
75,971

867

418,159

663,017
549
6,916
13,928

684,410

41,458
236

41,694
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13YME-BRERZE
(a) The Group (a) X&EHE
Land and
buildings held
for own use Furniture,
carried Plant and fixtures and Motor
at fair value machinery equipment vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BORERE
b1 4
KB A R
T REF R RERBRE RE Fh
T Fr T Fr T
Cost or valuation: RARAEE:
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZ+F—HF—H 15,608 395,905 80,155 3,862 495,530
Exchange adjustment BHAE 12 529 220 5 766
Additions NE - 20,559 2,186 1,462 24,207
Disposals & - (43,601) (14,250) (480) (58,331)
Revaluation adjustment EHAE 2,939 = = = 2,939
At 31 December 2007 RZZZLF
+-A=+-H 18,559 373,392 68,311 4,849 465,111
Representing: B
Cost A = 373,392 68,311 4,849 446,552
Valuation - 2007 “EELFHE 18,559 - - - 18,559
o e didets o K S I
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZEZNFE—H—H 18,559 373,392 68,311 4,849 465,111
Exchange adjustment EH A% - 514 171 8 693
Additions NE - 18,692 9,414 350 28,456
Disposals T & - (543) = - (543)
Revaluation adjustment BEAE (1,880) - - - (1,880)
At 31 December 2008 R-BENF
t=A=t-H ____166719 392,055 77.8% 3207 4 491,837 _
Representing: ‘B
Cost %N - 392,055 77,896 5,207 475,158
Valuation - 2008 —EEN\EHE 16,679 = = = 16,679
16,679 392,055 77,896 5,207 491,837
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuved)y 13 YIE -BERRZE 2)

(a) The Group (continued) (a) A&H (&)
Land and
buildings held
for own use Furniture,
carried Plant and fixtures and Motor
at fair value machinery equipment vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BRAEE
1) A
KRR B
T RETF BERHEE RERRE AE st
T T Tr Fr T

Accumulated depreciation R FERBEFE:

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+F—-H—H = 325,611 67,241 3,334 396,186
Exchange adjustment EH A% - 74 61 - 135
Charge for the year TEERZ 391 10,453 2,891 552 14,287
Written back on disposals HERD - (43,601) (14,250) (480) (58,331)
Elimination on revaluation A BB s 7 8 (391) - - = (391)
At 31 December 2007 RZZZLF

t=A=t-R - I Slle SELEED
At 1 January 2008 R=ZZZ\F—F—H - 292,537 55,943 3,406 351,886
Exchange adjustment B 5 5% - 86 51 = 137
Charge for the year AEERX 464 13,011 3,411 721 17,607
Written back on disposals HEER = (363) = = (363)
Impairment losses REER - 56,078 2,902 314 59,294
Elimination on revaluation P& ff B 1 8 (464) = = = (464)
At 31 December 2008 R-BBNEF

t=A=+-8 - 361,349 62307 4441 428,097
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2008 RZBBNF

+ZA=+-H 16,679 30,706 15,589 766 63,740
At 31 December 2007 RZETL+F

+-A=+—H 18,559 80,855 12,368 1,443 113,225
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(b) Revaluation of properties

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings held for own use
were revalued as at 31 December 2008 at their open market
value by reference to recent market transactions in comparable
properties. The valuations were performed by independent
professional valuers, Greater China Appraisal Limited and
Jointgoal Surveyors Limited, with recent experience in the

location and category of properties being valued.

The revaluation deficits of $1,416,000 (2007: surpluses
of $3,330,000) net of deferred tax of $318,000 (2007:
$590,000) (note 27(b)) have been transferred to the properties

revaluation reserve of the Group (note 28(a)).

Had these properties held for own use been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would have

been $8,792,000 (2007: $9,162,000).

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties

is as follows:

In Hong Kong SR
— medium-term leases —HHEE
Outside Hong Kong BB LA R
— short-term leases —RHEE
Representing: BiE

s

Leasehold land and buildings held for own %

X

use carried at fair value

RAEEIIRZ
FEERAHEET W RETF

(b) MEEfL

(c)

AEEFBFERcHELHRETFTE
R-ZFTNF+-_A=+—BRERX
MHES2ZRAMILBENEZTS
RZEM - EHBLERGHEME
EFEARAAMESASMITAER
RAEETT REDMAB A ER LR
NIRR AR5 o

EHEAN,416,0000L (ZFEELF:
& #23,330,0007T ) & i iE B H F 58
318,000t ( =ZZ+4F : 590,0007T )
(M sE27(b) ) E EBAREE 2 W
Sk HE (FizE28(a)) °

Wz E#HEE AMERKARE BT
WEHE  HERmER 58,792,000

—EET4H4:9,162,0007T) °
MEZREEFEINOT:
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
KEE

—BENE —ETLF
T Tt
16,200 18,000
479 559
16,679 18,559
16,679 18,559



(d) Impairment losses

In 2008, in view of the market situation and continuous
decrease in demand for data media products, the directors
assessed the recoverable amount of certain plant and
equipment related to the manufacture and sale of the data
media products segment. The directors prepared a cash flow
projection to estimate the recoverable amount of the related
plant and equipment. Impairment losses of $59,294,000
were recognised during the year to write down the plant and

equipment to their recoverable amounts.

The recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are

extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

Gross margin E =R
Growth rate 1R R
Discount rate B IR &

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and
growth rate based on past experience as well as future
expected market trends. The discount rate used is pre-tax and

reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

(d)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

WEEE

RZZZ)NF  ARTR & SIRE
BEQERRHER) E=THEGH
HERHEHBRERERYHZE

THELRZEBEZAKE€E - EF
ERER SRS BE G B K
B REEZAWKE S HE- FRNER
59,294,0007T & 15 &5 18 LA MU R 55 K2
REZHEAIRE S

Al E e BEAEREEEFEEEM

BT - RenEeREZtENEERE
MERFHE Y RBEEEELE-HE
BRAFHRZRSREHEA THIMEET
tEE=HE -
FHEENEE®RRE:
27%
-5%
7%

EEERBBERE N AKTIZBES
FRAEEREEMNKRERE A
ZRER KR BRRBATAAIE - W R ARAE
B3 &B 2 15 E LR o



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases

The Group acquired certain plant and equipment under finance
leases expiring from one to three years. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of plant and
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was
$27,877,000 (2007: $24,359,000). These assets are pledged to

secure the Group's obligations under finance leases (note 24).

Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out certain items of plant and machinery
under operating leases. The leases do not have a fixed lease

period. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Property, plant and equipment pledged for
bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2008, certain of the Group's land
and buildings with net book value of $16,200,000 (2007:
$18,000,000) was pledged as security for certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 22).

(e)

(f) L

(9)

LmEMHERm 2= K
ERFEE
AEEAREEREBANE THE
RER—Z=FNER-FAERY
AR AT S R o

REER AEBUREHTRERS
Z s N Rk s BR T #{E 3% 27,877,000
L (ZZZT 4 :24,359,0007T) ° it
ERECEAASEREHRERER
Z B (FEE24) °

AEEHEHBEZYE BE
Kt
AEE O EEREEEE TRE R
BER-ARBOLEETHES-
BOBTRERARS -

RERTEEEFZYE K
ER&HE
R—ZZTETNFEF+=ZA=+—8"
AEEBETIHEEF ZEEF
5/416,200,000c (=TT L F:
18,000,0007T ) * 7 FAVEHERE FIR1T
BFAREEERZA (MeE22) -



Cost:
At 1 January 2007

Additions through internal

development

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008

Additions through acquisition

At 31 December 2008

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2008
Charge for the year
Impairment losses

At 31 December 2008

Net book value:
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

B
RN —ETLFE-A—H
BBANERRNE

R BHERAESR:

RZZEZ+F—F—H
AEERE

RZZTLEF
+=A=+—H

RZZZNE—HF—H
AEERY
B8

R-ZFN\E
+t=ZA=t-H

IREFE
RZZENF
+=BA=+-H
i F
+—H

A
r\,

=
A

+=

Development
costs
$'000

B 3% B A
T

39,425

17,487

56,912

56,912

56,912

5,048
4,428

9,476

9,476
5,690

15,166

41,746

47,436

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group
Technical Distribution
know-how channels
$'000 $'000

rEE

% 9l 0 7 DHRE
T Tt
5,460 =
5,460 -
5,460 -
26,000 15,800
31,460 15,800
2,639 -
1,092 -
3,731 -
3,731 -
1,821 527
637 =
6,189 527
25,271 15,273
1,729 =

(LT HIMR)

Total
$'000

et
Tt

44,885
17,487
62,372
62,372

41,800

104,172

7,687
5,520

13,207

13,207
8,038
637

21,882

82,290

49,165
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 ,ﬁ\i\ Hz iﬁ E (%)
Development costs are amortised on a straight line basis over ten FEKREALNEHEERIRERS TFRAER
years from the date of commencement of production of the relevant BROEHESE o
products.
Technical know-how is amortised on a straight line basis over five to RMASEREE T EHNERAEN-
ten years.
Distribution channels are amortised on a straight line basis over ten DIHRBIETFHNEREEE-
years.
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost of FEHHEROREERARARRNIHE
sales” and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income RA] R [{THEAIEF -
statement.
15 GOODWILL 15 BE
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
AEE
—zENE —ERtE
Fx Fr
Cost DR 39,545 39,545
Less: Impairment loss (note 5(c)) OB EEE (MEES() (39,545) =
Carrying amount REE - 39,545
Impairment test for cash-generating unit BERHEBZReELAENRER
containing goodwill pil
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (CGU) PR DIRIEEL D Mo B2 5 = #3513
identified according to business segment as follows: SEABUNAT:
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—EENF —EZLF
Fr T
Distribution of data media products DIEBIEHEE D - 39,545
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Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continuead)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated rates stated below. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business in which

the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

Gross margin EF=E
Growth rate #E =
Discount rate BhIH =R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectation for market development. The
weighted average growth rate is estimated by management after
taking into consideration an industry growth forecast. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant

segment.

Based on the calculations, an impairment loss of $39,545,000 was

recognised during the year to write down the goodwill to nil.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

BEHBCREELEARER

b NE )

% B HA A AT IR E 2B A5 PR (R A
HEEEMEE - Re B EE 2 E MU
EREEER AN M AR
BAAEHE Y BE R BRA THIME
EHE - BMEEETRRBEGREE
EERHRBTHEEE.

EREENEZRR:
2008 2007
—BENE —EELE
5% 14%
5% 5%
7% 7%

EEEREBERBANREAMSERNE
RAEFTREENX -ERERBHITHEE
R AKRE 2 EFEIERE
RZBRESHRBATRER & I R AR
DEZERR

RIETE B R FERAER39,545,0007T 2
REESE UHREEEE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RMB AT ZKRE

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

LI —TTiE

Frx T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - ERACAR 39,172 39,172

UTIERRBEHARE ZRE EEX
BEAERFENNB AR ZFFE - FK
BRI AERR ZAERBERI:

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

110

Name of Company

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Particulars of
issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

Percentage
of ownership
interest held
by the Group

Principal activities

(Note (a)) (Note (b))
ERTREARRE FEEEAZ

DRAARE SEM AR S R E i A& AR FEARRERAS L TEER
(PiiE(a)) (Pt #E(b))

Afex International (HK) Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares 100 Trading of computer
Limited of $1 each printing and

imaging products

KEBER (BE)BRAT B BREEITZ 100 B E BN

3 A%50,0000% KB Em

Clearview Development British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding
Limited of US$1 each

Clearview Development RERZES BREEIETLZ 100 ®EER
Limited &8 M%10,0008%

Feitian Magnetic The PRC US$2,500,000 100 Manufacture of data
Information-Technology media products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(note ()

BEHA CRYIDBRAR P 2,500,000%7¢ 100 EBEBBKEER
(HMt3E(0)

Fortune Luck British Virgin Islands 4 ordinary shares of 100 Distribution of data
Development Ltd. US$1 each media products
BEERARAA KERELHS BREEI1EZTZ 100 DHBEBERBEM
T R4
Great China Global British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100 Distribution of data
Limited US$1 media products
BB G R A A KERELHS [EENEwd 100 SDHBBEEER
TR AR
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Name of Company

DREB

Havenport Management
Limited

Havenport Management
Limited

Jackin Accessories Industrial
Company Limited
Jackin Accessories Industrial

Company Limited

Jackin Imaging Products

Limited

BEATEREMER QA

Jackin Trading Company
Limited
BYES5ERAE

Jackin Magnetic Company
Limited

ERWERRAAF

Place of
incorporation
and operation
(Note (a))

SRR S R E i B
(P #E(a))

British Virgin Islands

KBRUES

British Virgin Islands

EBELES

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

EBELES

Hong Kong

b

Particulars of
issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BRTRBERE
AMERFE

10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
BREBIETZ
A A% 10,0008%

1 ordinary share
of US$1

HEI1ETZ
ERRAR

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

FREEIETZ
3B AX 100/%

1 ordinary share of
US$1

EEI1EZTZ
TR AR

10 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each and
10,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each (Note (d))

FREEI1008B T
T imAR10A% &
FREEI100B T
ERERETER D
10,0008 (Ff&E(d))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Percentage
of ownership
interest held
by the Group

(Note (b))
AEEfEEZ
EARBEEDL
(P (b))

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

FTEXH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERERK

Development of
computer printing
and imaging
products

RBITEH R GER

Trading of data
media products

BEEHBAREMD

Trading of data

media products

(LT HIMR)
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Name of Company
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Particulars of
issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

Percentage
of ownership
interest held
by the Group

16 RMTBRARIZKRE (&)

Principal activities

(Note (a)) (Note (b))
ERTRBERE, AEEfEEZ
AAEB SEM AL R R i B EfE RS FEARBEED ETEEE
(Fi#E(a)) (i #E(b))
Jackin Manufacturing British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited Us$1
Jackin Manufacturing RERZES mEIETZ 100 ®EER
(Shenzhen) Limited L AR AR
Jackin Optical Marketing Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100 Trading of data
Company Limited HK$1 each media products
EENBHERRDA i BREENETZ 100 EXHBREBEM
B2
Jackin U.S.A. Inc. United States of 1 ordinary share 100 Trading of computer
America of US$1 printing and
imaging products
Jackin U.S.A. Inc. ESEl EE1ETTZ 100 BEESMEMN R
BRI TREMm
Jackin Video Cassette Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100 Property holding
Co. Limited of HK$1 each and
1,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each (Note (d))
BEYEERAR i BREENETZ 100 PEKE
EimAR1,0000% &
BREBAETZ
BERERET
%15 1,000,0004%
(Bit=E(d))
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Name of Company

DRERE

Jackin Video Cassette
(Taiwan) Limited
BEBERTTRMD

BRAE

Noble Team Holdings
Limited

Noble Team Holdings
Limited

Oakview International
Limited

Oakview International
Limited

Prince Diamond Co., Ltd.

Prince Diamond Co., Ltd.

R INF i & IR FT ENFEHF

AR QA (Shenzhen Afex
Print Image Ltd) (Note (c))

R INF i & IR FT ENFE RS
BRAAE (M)

Place of
incorporation
and operation
(Note (a))

SRR S R B i B
(P #E(a))

Taiwan

AN =
=W

British Virgin Islands

EBELES

British Virgin Islands

RBRUES

British Virgin Islands

EBELES

The PRC

a2l

Particulars of
issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BRTRBERE
AMEARE

2,000,000 ordinary

shares of NT$10 each

BREBEHAEI0T.Z
3@ A%2,000,0000%

10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

BREBIEZETZ
3 A% 10,0008%

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BREBIETZ
T 3EAR100A%
2 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BREBIEZETZ

HBB2R

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000/ 7T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

Percentage
of ownership
interest held
by the Group

(Note (b))
AEEfEEZ
EARBEAEDL
(P (b))

99.9

99.9

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

FTEXH

Property holding

MERE

Investment holding

REZEK

Investment holding

Investment holding

REZEK

Remanufacture of
computer printing
and imaging
products

3365 B ED Rl 2
TR Em
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of Company

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Particulars of
issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

Percentage
of ownership
interest held
by the Group

16 RMTBRARIZKRE (&)

Principal activities

(Note (a)) (Note (b))
BRTRARRE rEEREAZ

AEER SEM A R R i B A& AR FEARBEED L FTEEE
(Fi#E(a)) (Fif (b))

Sky City Macao Commercial Macau 1 ordinary share of 100 Trading of computer
Offshore Limited MOP100,000 printing and

imaging products

RN PR = 7 5 IR TS ol [ERERA Sk 100 BESKORR
5RAF 100,0007T Z & 3@ A1 Ak S e ER

Tempair Developments British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding
Limited of US$1 each

Tempair Developments REBRELHS BREEBIETZ 100 ®EER
Limited LM% 10,0008%

Ugent Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding

of US$1 each

Ugent Holdings Limited RBREZESE BREBIEZETZ 100 ®EER

3 A% 10,0008%

WEFmERITENFEME  The PRC HK$5,000,000 100 Remanufacture of
MR A & (Zhuhai Afex Print computer printing
Image Ltd) (Note (c)) and imaging

products

IR i G IR HT ENRE S i 5,000,000% 7T 100 FEEMER R
BRAE (M) FEREm

RYITHARRE AR The PRC RMB500,000 100  Distribution of data
ABR Al (Note (c) media products

RYITHRRE AR i 500,000 A R ¥ 100 ZDHBEBERER

BRAR (M)
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Notes:

(a)

Other than those subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, whose place of operations are basically in Hong Kong, the
places of operations of all other subsidiaries are the same as their

places of incorporation.

Except for Oakview International Limited, which is directly owned
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises

established in the PRC.

The Group holds 100% of the issued ordinary share capital. The
deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically
carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies or to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

Inventories in the consolidated balance
sheet comprise:

Raw materials R H
Work in progress Pt
Finished goods Uk

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

B :

(a)

(a)

B 10 25 /B8 R 22 BF S R M A SZ 2 Y /BB 22 A
&S REBIN PAAEMIER
B2 48 i B B H A S B AR R -

% Oakview International Limitedf &~ A
RIEEFAIN FIEEMHE R RHYH
AKARIEEREE -

ZEWE R BRI T B 2 SN B
Bihxk-

REEFF100%E BT EBRRA I
FFHARRERE 2R D EAREREU
MRS REMERERBEMPRAE Z
BERLFEARAREMBRAEG KT
FBRGENE LRE TEEREER
IR 2 B A K ©

GREEEEEBEXRFEEANU
T EB 448 R

The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

AREE

—BBN\F —EZLF
Fr T
196,208 140,549
8,033 8,680
19,001 47,090
223,242 196,319
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 fE)

17 INVENTORIES (continued)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

17 & (&)

(b) BRAA-—EXHZFESH

recognised as an expense is as follows: a1
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
AEH
e B
S Tt
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFENREE 337,516 273,704
Write down of inventories =& MUR 2,987 988
340,503 274,692
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ R HMEWKIE
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
rEE PN
i35 —ZETtF —EENF —ET+F
Fr Fr T F
Trade debtors and bills receivable & 5 EWRT K
JE I 2 % 202,694 196,446 - =
Less: allowance for doubtful B REREE
debts (note 18(b)) (HI5E18(b)) (22,899) = - =
179,795 196,446 - -
Amount receivable from debts REBEHEE
assignment (note 18(d)) Y RIE (FTE18(d)) - 11,644 - =
Amounts due from disposed EREHENBATZ
subsidiaries FRIE - 11,256 - =
Other deposits, prepayments and E 1% 4  FE FIE &
other receivables H A & W SE 13,881 26,401 200 21
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEURHIE X A ZUA - - 279,070 356,200
193,676 245,747 279,270 356,221

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008



18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered

or recognised as expense within one year.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

(a) Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and

bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the

Notes to the Financial Statements

81

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 5 5E)

18 EZ RHMEWRRE 2

MEE S REMBYGRABRBRER —FR
Wem sk iER R

FEUH B AR EER R R L LA
FEERATE -

(a)

AR DA

BHREMEWRFARREE S RBWER
AREBRE (NBRRERE) - HER

following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: HERZIRESITHT

The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

AEH
—sENE o
Fr T
Current B &8 132,868 185,453
Less than 3 months past due ‘AR =@ A 26,359 3,931
3 to 6 months past due BME==X8A 3,728 3,024
Over 6 months past due B HR <8 A A 16,840 4,038
Amounts past due palile = . 46927 | 10,993

179,795 196,446

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 60 to 180
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's

credit policy are set out in note 30(a).

H#st60HE180H

BHREESAMERERERANERZ

WEH - REBEE

B 2 FE BRI EE30(a) -

2008 F¥ | BXEMEEBRA

117
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills

receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade

debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1 (i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the

18 EZ R HMEWRRE 2
(b) EZEWHRAREKRERE

A=

ERE S RYSR R R ERER 2 RE

BRI ERBERCE  RIEAREE
S AT Y B SRR AT RE 1 K - IR Ut

BATREBRINEZMEE S RK

FRR N R U =R (P EE13)()) ©

year, including both specific and collective loss components, is BEB)WAT
as follows:
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
EME
—gENE Bt L
Fr Tt
At 1 January - =
Impairment losses recognised EmERBEEE 22,899 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 22,899 -

At 31 December 2008, the Group's trade debtors and bills
receivable of $22,899,000 (2007: Nil) were individually
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

R-BENE+-_A=+—H K&
[#22,899,000T (=TT LF: )2
B o RBERKERZIEERNEE R
ERE AEETEBABEHRITS

EREEEE iR
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(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are
not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 7 4 260 HA SXRk (B
Less than 3 months past due BE DR =18 A
3 to 6 months past due BME== @A
Over 6 months past due %60 HA 48 38 7< (&8 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

() ¥BBEZEZBRERAK

EWRE

I 4 18 5l 3k = R E 1O B 7 R WK BR 3K
RENMZBERESTAOT

The Group
2008 2007
$000 $'000

AEE

—EEBN\F —TTLF
Fr T
132,868 185,453
26,359 3,931
3,728 3,024
16,840 4,038
46,927 10,993
179,795 196,446

45 %80 HA 7 SR R (B RO B U R IR - BT B
W EERERCENEZEFL AR -

BB R E R AR IR A R B A
THERFEFRCHNENTFERH-
AEEEXUEEREE REBE
B BEEERREHA 2EKE L
HEERERELE - NEBE W K5
BRABRFEEMER®D-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ K MY ot

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 fE)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 EFRHEMEWNKIE 2
(d) Debts assignment (d) EHEZE
In order to facilitate the Group’s treasury management, in RBERAEEESER AFERZ
November 2006 the Group assigned certain trade debtors T NF +— A BA34,931,0007T 2 X
with book carrying value totalling $38,812,000 to an E %8R B E 4 $£38,812,000t 2 & F
independent third party (the “Assignee”) at a consideration of EoRKNEREET 2B LE=
$34,931,000, which is payable by the Assignee through equal HZEAN) ZREHZZAR
quarterly instalments of approximately $5,822,000 scheduled R+ F_RETT)\FHAH
during February 2007 to May 2008. The difference of M UNEESBANRATREEZMAL
$3,881,000 between the book carrying value of the assigned 5,822,0007T ° FT#E 3 fE I BR ;X 2 BR &
debts and the consideration has been deferred and amortised EEMRE 23,881,000t 2 =58 Ak
over the term of the instalment payments. EEBR WK HT AR -
19 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 19 EEHFER
Pledged deposits at 31 December 2008 represented deposits RZZEZENGF+A=+—HZEBERF
pledged with a bank as guarantee issued to a supplier. FEERER T —ERITIERR — B HE
PERERZFR
Pledged deposits at 31 December 2007 represented deposits RZZEZLF+A=+—HzZEH®HfEF
pledged with a bank as security for a bank guarantee issued to a RERBE—REEREMBLETBER
PRC court in connection with a legal claim. The pledged deposits ZRITERZRES UEFEZERLEL TZ
were released during the year. BRIT- ZEEMEFRERNFRNMR -
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERREEEY
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
rEE PN
—EBN\F ZTTLF —EENF ZTTtF
Fr T Fom F
Deposits with banks RITIER 20,277 24,572 - =
Cash at bank and in hand ROTRERFRRES 2,846 14,609 67 127
Cash and cash equivalents BEAGRTHRER
in the balance sheet Re%SEY 23,123 39,181 67 127
Bank overdrafts (note 22) RITEX (HIE22) (10,073) (5,138)
Cash and cash equivalents in FERERERF
the consolidated cash flow RekBReEED
statement 13,050 34,043
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 5 5E)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ESZRHEMEARIE
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
rEE NG|
—EENF —TELF —EENEF —ET+F
o FT Fr Fir
Trade creditors and bills payable 2 5 &~ BE 7 &
JERTZ & 48,284 33,782 - =
Accruals and other payables EREA R
H fth & - 5R0E 38,859 23,494 9,526 7,388
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN NGIE S - = 48,257 50,459
Amounts due to directors JEHEERIB 1,314 = 680 =
88,457 57,276 58,463 57,847

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

Amounts due to subsidiaries and directors are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills

payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

MEESREMENRBEAR —FRE

BHERRWA HBARBELNE-

ENMEARREERENEERALR

B W RBERMNE-

BHLEMENFIBEREE S ENERK

ENREER REERNREIMAOT -

date.
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
rEE

—2NE —ETtE
Fx T

By date of invoice: REZRGHE:
Within 3 months 31E A A 45,950 24,245
Over 3 months but within 6 months BiB3ME A E6E A A 1,599 5,850
Over 6 months but within 9 months A6 E HEYE A A - 3,297
Over 9 months but within 12 months RO AE 1218 A W - 194
Over 1 year BiB1E 735 196
48,284 33,782

2008 F¥ | BXEMEEBRA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(a) At 31 December 2008, the bank and other (a) R=ZEENF+Z=ZHA=+—
borrowings were analysed as follows: B r#BITREMEEZSHTAN
T
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
By | £A
—gENE et L R —gENE et L
F5 i ¥ i
Bank loans and overdrafts RITEFREL
— Import and export loans —EHOER 98,210 93,421 - =
- Term loans —EHER 61,564 83,817 - =
- Mortgage loans —RIBER 9,045 9,876 - =
- Overdrafts (note 20) —#R17E X (FIEE20) 10,073 5,138 40 =
178,892 192,252 40 -
Other loans HE % - 750 - =
178,892 193,002 40 -
(b) At 31 December 2008, the bank and other (b) R=FBEENF+=ZA=1+—
borrowings were repayable as follows: B RITREMEEZENRED
N
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
*EE £A7
—gE)E et T ¥ EE TV et T3
Fi i i T
Within 1 year or on demand ~ 1F REIEE R 156,938 146,653 40 =
After 1 year but within 2 years FBB1FEE2ER 11,049 24,800 - =
After 2 years but within 5 HiE2F B5F R
years 6,681 16,694 - -
After 5 years B iB5F 4,224 4,855 - =
21,954 46,349 - _

178,892 193,002 40 -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(c) At 31 December 2008, the bank and other (c) RZEBEENFE+ZA=1+—
borrowings were secured as follows: B BITREMESE ZIERN
T
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
rEE PN

—gENE et T ¥ —EENE et 1 N7

Fi Fi i Fi

Secured Vol 9,045 9,876 - =

Unsecured R 169,847 183,126 40 =

178,892 193,002 40 -
At 31 December 2008, the mortgage loans of the Group were RZBZENF+ZA=+—H AEHIKZ

secured over certain of its leasehold properties (note 13(g)).

(d) All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the

fulfilment of certain covenants as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. In the
event of breach of the covenants, the drawn down facilities
become payable on demand. Further details of the Group’s

management of liquidity risk are set out in note 30(b).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has breached certain
financial covenants in respect of bank loans with carrying value
of $18,500,000. Upon discovery of the breach, the directors of
the Company commenced a renegotiation of the terms of the
loan with the related creditor bankers. These negotiations have

not been concluded as at the date of the financial statements.

ERNEETHENXESER (KT

~

9)

(d) "&EEFRERTEEEATETES

BB LZEERHEF —RER
ZETEOAAR -WERNEXE
R-AIBXE 2z EEREBEKRERE
B-AEERHERKRERZFER
BT EE30(b) ©

R-EENFE+-_A=+—8 K&
B =& R ARHEMEA18,500,0007T 2
RITERA B - EBHRENER
B ARFEEMEBERRBITENR
MERGRZER -HEVKREA
HEEEEERITAREE-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 fE)

The analysis of the carrying amount of notes payable is as follows:

Secured Notes 10% 2010 (note a) 10[E =& — = F 5| 5
BB ERE (MsEa)
15E =T — = F 5|5

BERER (MiEb)

Guaranteed Notes 15% 2010 (note b)

(a) Secured notes and unlisted warrants issued
in 2007

Pursuant to a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and a substantial
shareholder (the “Subscriber”) on 14 June 2007, the Company
issued, and the Subscriber subscribed for, notes (the “Secured
Notes”) in the aggregate principal of $78 million on 27 June 2007.
The Secured Notes carry interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum

and are repayable by 27 June 2010.

The Secured Notes were secured by the shares of a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. At 31 December 2008, the carrying
value of the net assets of the subsidiary was approximately

$18,411,000 (2007: $35,263,000).

ENEEEREEZ ST T:

The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

AEE

—ZEBN\F —TTLF
T T
76,430 76,086
31,937 =
108,367 76,086

(a) R=ZEZLFRITHHRER

EERFLTRRESR

REBEANRE-ZEERE ([BEAL)
RZEZEFANATEARZZRER
& ([RBWHZH])  ARRBEEHITMRE
ANERBR -_ZTLFRA-+LH
BAREFR78,000,0007T 2 Rix ([HHE
MER]) BEAREREEFLSEI0
EFe YAR-_ZE-—ZTFRA-_++t
BRIEE -

BEBEZEURQA—R2EHER
RZBHOEER - R_TESENE+=
A=+—HB ZMBRARIFEEZR
EE% 518,411,000 (—TEZT L4
35,263,0007T) °



(a)

(b)

Secured notes and unlisted warrants issued
in 2007 (continued)

In addition, on 27 June 2007, pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, the Company issued, at zero consideration, to
the Subscriber 56,317,689 unlisted warrants of the Company
conferring rights entitling the holders to subscribe for up to
$31,200,000 in aggregate in cash for 56,317,689 new shares
of $0.1 each of the Company at an initial subscription price of
$0.554 per share. The warrants are exercisable within a period
of two and half years from 28 December 2007 to 27 June 2010.
None of these warrants were exercised during the years ended 31

December 2007 and 2008.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Secured Notes
and warrants were redeemed on 6 April 2009 pursuant to a
subscription agreement in relation to the issuance of convertible

bonds (note 34(c).)

Guaranteed notes issued in 2008

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and a substantial shareholder (the “Subscriber”) on 6
October 2008, the Company issued, and the Subscriber subscribed
for, notes (the “Guaranteed Notes”) in the aggregate principal of
$31.2 million. The Guaranteed Notes carry interest at a fixed rate

of 15% per annum and are repayable by 27 June 2010.

The Guaranteed Notes were guaranteed by a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Guaranteed Notes are interest
bearing borrowings and have been accounted for in accordance

with accounting policy set out in note 1(1).

(a)

(b)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 5 5E)

R-ZBZLFRITHREN
SERFLTRRER @)

N R=ZTZTLFA=-++tH R
BREME  ADREERRE AR
56,317,68910 & A Al 2 3F & ™ R IR 4
B ZERKREER TIHAAER A
B HRIEBER0.5547T  WB SR
AR R GIREEO. 1T ZHAR56,317,689
B% - Bl A& H£ & % 3£31,200,0007T ° % &
RREETE_TT+LFF_A=+N
BE-ZT T A-ttAILLMEE
NITHE-BE_ZZ+ER_TT)N\F
ToA=+—RLEFE HERBREE
A FEATAE o

BEAR CEEREBELRAREZD
R-ZZNFOARNAREEBET
A HRIRE F (KT 5E34()) R IB 1 =&
ifn & @ o

REZBZENFRITZRER
RE

BBEANEE—ZFEZRE ([RBEAL)
R=ZZZENF+ANBILZRER
ZOAARBBRITMREANERER
A& % 531,200,0007T 2 2% ([HER
=) BEREENETFBRISE
HECOWAERZZE-—ZTFSA=-+tH

L iy

A {E &

o

F” Al

EREREBHARAEIERRER -8
EREBANESEE L REHNH
A1) BT REKI IR -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(c) Unsecured notes and unlisted warrants

issued in 2006

Pursuant to several subscription agreements (the “Subscription
Agreements”) entered into between a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Issuer”) and certain independent third parties
(the “Subscribers”) on 28 December 2005, the Issuer issued, and
the Subscribers subscribed for, notes (the “Unsecured Notes"”)
in the aggregate principal of $25 million on 24 March 2006.
The Unsecured Notes carried interest at a fixed rate of 10% per
annum, were unsecured and repayable by 23 March 2009. The
Subscription Agreements and the supplementary amendments also
provided that upon the receipt of proceeds from the final award in
relation to a legal claim by the Group up to the aggregate principal
amount of the Unsecured Notes outstanding together with interest
thereon from time to time, the Issuer should within 30 days
redeem the Unsecured Notes. Accordingly, the Issuer redeemed the
Unsecured Notes in full in June 2006 and a loss on redemption of

$3,407,000 was recognised in profit or loss in 2006.

In addition, on 24 March 2006, pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements, the Company issued, at zero consideration, to the
Subscribers of 137,484,000 unlisted warrants of the Company
conferring rights entitling the holders to subscribe for up to
$17,872,920 in aggregate in cash for 137,484,000 new shares of
$0.1 each of the Company at an initial subscription price of $0.13
per share. The warrants are exercisable within a period of three

years from 24 March 2006 to 23 March 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 72,234,000 of these
warrants were exercised. None of the warrants were exercised

during the year ended 31 December 2008.

(c)

/

REZBZEAFRITHEERNA
SERFLTRRER

RIEARRE — %zﬁwgﬂiwﬁﬁ
ANBEFBYE=7 ([READR

TRE+T A=+ N\BFIZZEIA
REDZ ([RERZE]) RZTEX
FZAZTHABTARETMREA
AIE R 27 € % /525,000,000c 2 8
B(IEEREE]) SENERAER
o REEEERI0EFFLE TAERZ
TTNE=ZA-_+=-HBREE - RER

FRMTBINRAE ERNEEEEZ
ERRE 2 HIRFIAR BT AER30
ARNEEEERRE MRS AWKT
2 AR ZIRAR A & BB R N BT
ZRBRR Bt BITARZZTEREF
NAZEEREERER MBS 2 &
183,407,000 E R = ZEERNFHEHR
PR o

B >

N RZTTZRE=ZA=-+MHA R
1% R AIEE R RE AT
137,484,00008 A~ 2 7] 2 3k £ 1 SR AR 4
F ZERREFE T RE AR TR
MERBEER013T  WELREA

AR FREEO.17T,2 ¥R 137,484,000
B BNA H&E %3E17,872,92000 % %
RBREBAIE_TTARF=A=1+HWAE
E-EENE=ZA-_+=RIL=FR{T
e

HE_ZT+FE+_R=+—HILEFE

A 72,234,000l R BEZ B T o
BE-_ZEZE)N\E+-_A=+—BItFE
I RN B AT



(d) Both the Secured Notes, Unsecured Notes and the warrants were

(e)

deemed to be compound financial instruments and have been
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy set out in

note 1(m).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had breached certain
financial covenants in respect of notes payable with carrying
value of $108,367,000. Accordingly, these notes payable have
been reclassified as current liabilities at 31 December 2008.
Out of the $108,367,000, notes payable of $76,430,000
were redeemed in April 2009 (note 23(a)). Upon discovery
of the breach, the directors of the Company commenced a
renegotiation of the terms of the remaining notes payable of
$31,937,000 with the note holders. The Group has obtained

confirmation from the note holders that they would not

request early redemption the notes.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(d) sEAZE SR HERBREESY

(e)

BEREEMBITA TEREME
Hm)FTELZ S 5T RS R -

RZZEENF+_A=+—H &%
2 < BR M {8 4108,367,0007T 2 &
NEEZETHBERL - Bt - ZE5E
REBR_ZTTN\F+-_A=+—AH
BN BERREEE1108,367,000
TTZER RS - 76,430,000TE R
—TTNFMAER (MiFE23@)) o 1
BRBABRE ARAEEEMER
TEE 2 57 E31,937,0007T 2 E &
BREAEFERES AEEBENE
ERFAEAZER BEHTEEX

REBE@RER-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

24 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 MEMHERK
At 31 December 2008, the Group had obligations under finance RZZBZENF+ZA=+—H KEEH
leases repayable as follows: AMHEEEHEENT
The Group Py
2008 2007
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
—EENF —ETtF
BEHSEE BEHEESE HEHLHE REReEH
T T T T
Within 1 year L T 2879 104320 | ___ 7108 - (el [
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ BB1FE{E2ER 6,696 7,119 3,844 4,334
After 2 years but within 5 years  fB@2F{E5F A 1,147 1,253 1,479 1,674
o 1843 8372 | 323 N BRes
17,722 18,862 12,431 13,769
Less: total future interest W BEANEZ e
expenses (1,140) (1,338)
Present value of lease obligations &7 2R E 17,722 12,431
The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the AEEsREUHEBRBUNEBEEAE
lessor's charge over the leased assets (note 13(e)). # (HIzE13()) °
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of

$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in other jurisdictions
are members of state-managed retirement benefits schemes
operated by the government of the respective jurisdictions. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes. The only
obligation of the Group with respect of the retirement benefits

schemes is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling $1,330,000 (2007: $1,130,000). At the

balance sheet date, there are no forfeited contributions.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

AEBRBEESARSMERAE S EE -
BIREESREGOZEZIEEEER
MAESE ([RESTE]) -aESs
B HBIEEAEE 2 EEMZORKE
gl RiFaEetE EXREEESAE
REBZBBRAZS%IELEHR - ELE
R & B4 A20,0007T 73 EBR o (A1 5+ & /E H
2R EREEANE -

REMBIZERZARAMBAR 2EER
REERDAE R BT E 2 BRE BN
FHEIZ KB - B A RIZAMRKER G
HEERNZEEHFEZBEBDLLER
AREBEHRABMNAE 2 —TENEL

FrEH K

RER AEBEELRIKEHNTERRE
1,330,000t (ZZEZ+4:1,130,000
Jo) cREE B - BB U e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

COMPENSATIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 12
June 2004 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, to take up
options at nominal consideration to subscribe for shares of the

Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the scheme, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from its shareholders. Notwithstanding this, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the scheme shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to any individual
who is a substantial shareholder of the Company or independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital at the date of grant
or with a value in excess of $5 million must be approved in advance

by the Company’s shareholders.
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26 URAEEROAER ZES

iR
ARABR=FBEME XA+ BRM—
ER RS Bt AR AR EE R
WEAEAREESUSKERA R EENSE
B - LT R A AR -

RIRETEI A g 2 A AR AR A 1T
% P RE BT Z IR 1D BB - PR IEAR R AIEAS
HRER 2 #&  TRIT AR BN E 2l
EABBITRNBEZ10% - EE WL -
BB B BB RITE 2 AT B BB AR AE R 1T
FERERTZERRMHEE T BB
FEBITIRID A E 230% o R E{T 1218 A #A
BEEMALRE 2 BRIEETERE S
TRBTHTZROBE REREAR
AR E - TRAIBBEMKED ETR
MBHEZ1% REERLBERELLD (2
FEZzB) 2@ A ERAEFAARARE
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Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of $1 per grant of options. Options may
generally be exercised at any time during the period after the
options have been granted, such period to expire not later than 10
years after the date of the grant of the options. The subscription
price for shares will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of options granted;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of options granted;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants
that existed during the year are as follows,
whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares:

Options granted to directors: BRTEZZBRE:
- on 25 January 2005 —RZETRF
—A=-+HAB

—on 5 July 2007 —-RZEELFLARH

— on 6 September 2007 —RZEZLFHARH
Options granted to employees: & F{E 8 Z BEAZAE

—RZETRF
—HA=-+H®H
_E/Q\—v 7tfﬁﬁﬂ Ei

—on 25 January 2005
—on 3 May 2007
ZELFLHAERA

— on 5 July 2007 —-R=

— on 6 September 2007

B R B 2R

Total share options

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

REhZBEREEARKLE ABL28HANE
XY RESHBRES 1T BRE—K
AHRELERER 2 BEABRTE: M
BERASEARTERRHBEREE HRI10F
& o B R E R A2 ER ()X B I E
ERARARMDKHE: (NEERELEBR
HE AR SRR ZARR KRG FIEK
E: R(NARBBRMEE=FF 28D
o AN E B AR E B REEITER AR
B2 EHIR

(a) UTHFRERHEBREZ
R RS BRAEEBR
EREBEEXNKRG M

&

Contractual
Number of Vesting life of
instruments conditions options
BREHE BREGG BREZANFH
13,751,138 — 10 years
104
4,500,000 = 1 year
145
4,500,000 = 1 year
15
1,088,628 — 10 years
104
23,650,000 — 2 years
24
7,000,000 = 1 year
15
9,500,000 = 1 year
Lk:=

63,989,766
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 UBRAGEERDAERZES

COMPENSATIONS FOR EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

HiE )
(b) BREZEE R NEFIT

prices of share options are as follows: EEMT:
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
‘000 '000
—EENE e 3
D15 g
TEE BREHE T E BRESE
Outstanding at the beginning 4 #]i4 K17 1%
of the year $0.3425 63,990 $0.1580 45,830
Granted during the year FAERL - - $0.4149 67,800
Exercised during the year FRBEITHE $0.2459 (2,150) $0.1805 (36,940)
Forfeited during the year FRE XK $0.1580 1) = =
Cancelled during the year FAEFEHE $0.4961 (25,500) $0.5340 (12,700)
Outstanding at the end FRMEARITEE
of the year $0.2407 36,339 $0.3425 63,990
Exercisable at the end FRA FITE
of the year $0.2407 36,339 $0.3425 63,990

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was $0.2459 (2007:
$0.1805).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had a weighted
average exercise price of $0.2407 (2007: $0.3425) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.6 years

(2007: 2.0 years).

None of these options was exercised subsequent to the

balance sheet date.
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(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share

options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share

options granted was measured based on the Black-Scholes

option pricing model.

The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Fair value at measurement date

Stock asset price HXTJJ BEEBK
Exercise price T8
Expected volatility 8 HA K 18
Expected life T8 HA B %A
Risk-free rate = 3 b b K
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B

Notes:

(i)

(i)

14,000,000 share options granted on 6 September 2007
are deemed to be the replacement options for the cancelled
options 12,500,000 which were initially granted on 5 July
2007. Accordingly, the fair value of these replacement
options are the same as the value of options granted on 5
July 2007 in accordance with HKFRS 2.

Share options granted on 3 May 2007 were revalued on 2
May 2008 when the directors approved to extend exercise
period of the outstanding 23,650,000 options by one year.
Accordingly, the options were revalued using new parameters
as a result of the increased expected life in accordance with
HKFRS 2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LT HIRR)

(c) BREZAABERRBR

AEEDSEEREZBREZDA
EBERGERTEREMRIAER

%z

MhBE-EREBEREZAA

EBEZEFDRBEERBREEER
AFFE - ZBEAZBALT:

Share options granted on

5 July 2007
and

6 September
2007

(Note i)
ZEBLF
tAEAR
ZEBLF
NARAE

(B aEi)

$0.165
$0.530
$0.540
102.99%
0.5 year &
3.920%
0%

RUT B R B RE
3 May 25 January
2007 2005
(Note ii)
—ETtF —ZZRF
EA=H —B=+EH
(BT =Eii)
$0.097 $0.096
$0.280 $0.1580
$0.293 $0.1580
96.77% 72%
0.5 year 5 years F
0.990% 2.801%
0% 0%
B 5

RZEZELFEFAAABEREN
14,000,00017 #& A% A 4 4% A BV 5
MR —ZETLHFLARAREY
2 BB E912,500,00019 B8 A% # - &
It RIR BB ISR E ERIE 25
ZEMREREZARNBEEER =
ST +E+LARBERENEREY
RN EEER -

AR -_ZTTLFRA=-BRHENE
BE R_ZEN\FRA-RAES
[F B L £ 23,650,00017 5 K77 BE
RRIERITER—F - BIBBHBHE
EAERIE 257 - A B TEHAA A
- BZEEREDERFL2HT
LAE o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

26 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

COMPENSATIONS FOR EMPLOYEES (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility

of the Company’s share price over the previous ten years.

The expected life used in the model was adjusted, based

on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-

transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of

highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share

price, changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.

27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet

26 URAHERGRER RS
WK )
(0 BEAZAREERER

(%)

TEHR R DARBA R RRERNBE T
FRZBERPEREE EEERE
REMGMFT ZEARERZBHE
BHIE A AT SR TR G 21T
RARZZEMTARE-

EHRBREEEEATERAREE
B2BR (BEREZRE) #HIH
BABRZRZESHEE R A BEMBE
EERTE-

27 BERBRAZHER
(a) EEEBERARHHRIEAT

represents: i
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
AEE
P o
F5 Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax RNEEBRBNSTEE
for the year 6,052 2,567
Provisional Profits Tax paid EEHAEH - (66)
6,052 2,501
Balance of Profits Tax provision EEBRTFEENESHEBEER
relating to prior years 1,811 4,119
Provision for overseas taxation B INT T8 B 2,467 491
10,330 7,111
Representing: =N
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] F¢ 38 (155) =
Tax payable FE LI 10,485 7011
10,330 7,011

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008




Notes to the Financial Statements

o %5 ¥ & MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

27 BERBRAZHER 2

(b) ERAELEHREERE

recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the

=

FRN ERNGEEEERBERABERAN
BREBBRAG (BE)ARED L&

year are as follows: EURCNE
The Group
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Revaluation Amortisation
the related of of intangible
depreciation Tax losses properties assets Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
N |
FEEEEH
HEE HEFR MEERE BREESH it
Fr T Fr Fr T
Deferred tax arising from: EZHETEA:
At 1 January 2007 RZEE+FE—f—H 12,429 (11,706) 1,066 - 1,789
(Credited)/charged to BR&ER (T A) /M
profit or loss (1,230) 507 - - (723)
Charged to properties BMFERFETR
revaluation reserve - - 590 - 590
At 31 December 2007 R-BZLE
+=A=+-8H 11,199 (11,199) 1,656 - 1,656
At 1 January 2008 R-BEN\E-F—A 11,199 (11,199) 1,656 = 1,656
(Credited)/charged BEHEA (GIA) /K
to profit or loss (4,518) 3,640 - 4,945 4,067
Credited to properties FTAMEERFEE
revaluation reserve - - (318) - (318)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZN\F
+=A=+-H 6,681 (7,559) 1,338 4,945 5,405
Representing: =%
The Group
2008 2007
$000 $'000
REE
—EENE —ETLF
Fr Fx
Net deferred tax assets recognised REEBBERERZ
on the balance sheet EERIBE EFRE (1,132) =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ~ R&E & ERER
on the balance sheet REFRIBEEFRE 6,537 1,656
5,405 1,656

2008 ¥ | BXEMEEBRA A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately $142,828,000 (2007: 171,979,000). In
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q),
the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of $44,611,000 (2007: $63,992,000). Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the

relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Tax losses of $6,055,000 (2007: $13,578,000) attributable
to certain subsidiaries in the PRC had an expiry period of
five years. The remaining tax losses of $136,773,000 (2007:
$158,401,000) do not expire under current tax legislation.

JACKIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2008

27 BEERBRAZHER &

() REERHELEBIREE

RZEZNEFE+ZA=+—H &K&
2 N #) A TIA K18 4)142,828,000
T (ZZEZ+4:171,979,0007T) °
BREMEINQM Bz B A%
E %44,611,000C (=TT F:
63,992,0007T ) 2 %t 18 & 18 HiE 2R IR JE
BMEEAE BRNEE@AHRBAEER
R EBAEREM s A0 HEAZER
A 88 2R 2R FE SR B0 il 2 AT AR 1R
1R O Rt R R T TE B B RIRT
BMEEE-

ETHRENBAREERERSSE
6,055,0007T ( ZZZ +4F : 13,578,000
T BB AR F - BBRRITRE
H M IEE18136,773,000C (=TT
+4 : 158,401,0007T ) FEIRTHLE N2
RAEEIEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)
28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 BRAR#E
(a) The Group (a) X&EHE
Properties
Share Share Capital  revaluation Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
& BHEE BAfE NEEMRE EiRE REET an
T T T T T T T
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+5-HA-H 68,746 111,575 7,200 5,009 233 84,427 277,190
Surplus on revaluation of properties,  HHEEH B %
net of deferred tax nEZERRS - - - 2,740 - = 2,740
Exchange difference on translation of 2 E & EINE A I
financial statements of subsidiaries ~ HBHREELZ
outside Hong Kong ERER - - = = 1,684 = 1,684
Profit for the year FERA - - - - - 33,476 33,476
Issue of new shares under share RERRES 85T
option scheme (note (c)(ii) ik (B (i) 3,694 6,342 (3,369) - = = 6,667
Issue of new shares on exercise of T AMRIEE AT
warrants (note (c)(ii) IR (W (i) 7,224 3,638 (1,471) - - - 9,391
Equity-settled share-based WRAEERND A
transactions RS
- grant of share options — R B RiE - - 4,300 = = = 4,300
Issue of the Secured Notes and BIBEAZERARER
warrants - - 1,400 - - - 1,400
At 31 December 2007 RZBBtE
+=A=+-H 79,664 121,555 8,060 7,749 1,917 117,903 336,848
Retained
Properties profits/
Share Share Capital  revaluation Exchange (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RERR/
BA REGEE ARG NEEHRE Eiff  (RiER) a5
T T Fr T Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2008 RZZEE\E-A-A 79,664 121,555 8,060 7,749 1917 117,903 336,848
Deficit on revaluation of properties, ~ HAEEH BERME 2
net of deferred tax B - = = (1,098) = = (1,098)
Exchange difference on translation ~ BEFEEINHIB A A&
of financial statements of HERBRRELZ
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ERER - - - - 1,258 - 1,258
Loss for the year EERE - - - - - (159.787)  (159,787)
Issue of new shares under share REBRES2IETHR
option scheme (note (c)(i) (BzE(i) 215 521 (208) - = = 528
Equity-settled share-based MR A EE R
transactions RERZZS
- modification of terms of share -BREERZET
options = = (2,300) - - 2,300 -
- cancellation of share options —FHERE - - 703 - - = 703
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
T=EEr=1 79879 122,076 6,255 6,651 3175 (39,584) 178,452

2008 ¥ | BXEMEEBRA A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

28 AR #E 2

(b) The Company (b) &2 F
Share Share Contributed Capital Retained
capital premium surplus reserve profits Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
&S BRHRE BARE ERGE REBER Hm
1 1 i 1 1 1
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEZ+5—-HA—H 68,746 111,575 15,048 7,200 41,443 244,012
Loss for the year (note 9) FEER (M:39) = = = = (4,183) (4,183)
Issue of new shares under  TRIEEERIE 2317
share option scheme B (B (o))
(note (<)(ii) 3,694 6,342 - (3.369) - 6,667
Issue of new shares on IR ER
exercise of warrants LAB1TE IR
(note (c)(iii)) (B (i) ) 7,224 3,638 - (1,471) - 9,391
Equity-settled share-based AR ALEE R AERE
transactions 2R 5
— grant of share options — R ERRE = = = 4,300 = 4,300
Issue of the Secured Notes ~ E{TEEAZE L
and warrants R R - - - 1,400 = 1,400
At 31 December 2007 R-B2LE
+=ZA=+—-8 79,664 121,555 15,048 8,060 37,260 261,587
Retained
profits/
Share Share Contributed Capital (accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve losses) Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REEF
&S BRHEE BABRE EXGEE (RIEBR) wm
i i i i i Fir
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENFE—H—H 79,664 121,555 15,048 8,060 37,260 261,587
Loss for the year (note 9) FEEE (H:39) - - - - (111,179 (111,179)
Issue of new shares under  1RIBEMRE 22T
share option scheme B (B (o))
(note (c)(ii)) 215 521 - (208) - 528
Equity-settled share-based AR ALEE R AER
transactions 2R 5
- modification of terms of ~ —EBIEEZ ZEFT
share options - - - (2,300) 2,300 -
- cancellation of share — iR
options - - - 703 - 703
At 31 December 2008 R-ZBENE
ER=tH =1 —IH 79,879 122,076 15,048 6,255 (71,619) 151,639
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(c) Share capital

()

(ii)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

() BA
Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZTRA
2008 2007
No. of No. of
shares shares
‘000 $'000 '000 $'000
—2ENE —EEtE
RHBE K& A
T T TR T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of FREME0.107TZ
$0.10 each EER ke 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, BER B#FT
issued and fully paid: REE -
At 1 January R—H—H 796,637 79,664 687,463 68,746
Shares issued under REEREE
share option scheme BT 2R M 2,150 215 36,940 3,694
Shares issued on exercise 171 7R % 4 7%
of warrants if 817 2 B AR - - 72,234 7,224
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 798,787 79,879 796,637 79,664
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TFARIES A GREZ G TR

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company'’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 2,150,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of $528,000 of which $215,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of $313,000
was credited to the share premium account. $208,000
was transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in

note 1(p)(ii).

ZBERARARBAARELER
—BR—RZERN A EBRE
DEARRRBEEN EEER
FHEF -

(i) RIZEREBRITZ R G

RER - BREEITEUREA
A A)2,150,000/% F @ AR - (KB
#%528,0007T * A H1215,0007T 7
AR - i g4 T #9313,0007T 71
AR 15 4 {8 Bk © 208,0007T B 1R
BB M1 (p)(i) 2 LR B &
AEBEBERDHER-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(c) Share capital (continued) (c) BA& (&)
(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme (i) RIZERETEIRTZRE
(continued) (%)

During 2007, options were exercised to subscribe
for 36,940,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of $6,667,000 of which $3,694,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of $2,973,000
was credited to the share premium account. $3,369,000
was transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in

note 1(p)(ii).

(iii) Shares issued on exercise of warrants

During the year, no warrants were exercised to subscribe

for ordinary shares in the Company.

During 2007, warrants were exercised to subscribe
for 72,234,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of $9,391,000 of which $7,224,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of $2,167,000
was credited to the share premium account. $1,471,000
was transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set out in

note 1(m).

RZZET+ERN BRETE
A 3% B8 78 A 5]36,940,0008% &
A% - {8 /6,667,0007T
#3,694,0007T 5t A IR 7K - T #4
N #92,973,0007T 5 A B 19 & (B
AR © 3,369,0007T B R B &H 5 X
BEEE 1 (p)(iDZ LR R E AR EE
BRERMDEER-

1T IR B T 21T 2 R

RER - W BAEFEITEIA
REARF LB -

RZZZT+HFRN RREFT
15 LA R B A R E)72,234,0000%
L@k K8 /9,391,000t - H
#17,224,0007T 5 A BR AR - 1 &4
T #92,167,0007T &1 A B 13 i B
Bk 1,471,0007T B 1R % 3 5 5%
Bt 5 1(m) 2 BUSK B & AN R i

2R m B o



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

(c) Share capital (continued) (c) BA&(#)
(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iv) REEHAKREBRAITEZ
options at the balance sheet date BREZ IR
2008 2007
Exercise price Number Number
—BENF —ZTT 4
Exercise period TR TEE #E #H A
25 January 2005 to —EERF—A=+HH
24 January 2015 E-_FT-RE—A=-+mA $0.1587C | 14,089,138 | 14,839,766
3 May 2007 to 2T +FHHA=H
2 May 2009 2T NFRA-A $0.2937T 22,250,000 23,650,000
5 July 2007 to —ETLFLARA
4 July 2008 E-_TE\ELANA $0.5407T - | 11,500,000
6 September 2007 to T EFNANHA
5 September 2008 EZE-TTN\FNLAAA $0.4607T - 14,000,000

36,339,138 63,989,766

The holder of each option is entitled to subscribe for one GREREREAEE TES
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these ARE—RAAGEREEK - ZE
options are set out in note 26 to the financial statements. FEAR N 2 FRIB RN B TS Rk P 5

26 °



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(v)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised warrants
at the balance sheet date

Exercise period TR

24 March 2006 to —EEXF=ZA=-1+WMAH
23 March 2009 E-FTTNF=ZA=-+=H
28 December 2007 to —EEEFE+ A=+ N\H
27 June 2010 2_FT—ZFTFXA=-++tH

The holder of each warrant is entitled to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further details of
these warrants are set out in note 23 to the financial

statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed

by Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the capital reserve

comprises the following:

- the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to directors
and employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

share-based payments in note 1(p)(ii); and

—  the value of the unexercised warrants issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for compound financial

instruments in note 1(m).

() B&(#)
(v) REFEHAXREBRRTEZ

B Z IR
2008 2007
Exercise price Number Number
—EEBN\F “ETF
THEE HH B

$0.1307T 65,250,000 65,250,000

$0.5547¢ 56,317,689 56,317,689

121,567,689 121,567,689

BERBEEZFEABERE—
BARBE B - ZERIREE

ZREBHNE B HmKRME23 -

(d) REHEERE/N
(i) KReEE

s ERZEAS—N\—F
BEERQNTNEFIOGEE -

(i) BXGFE
RZZEENFER_ZEZTLF+=

A=1+—8B EXf#HEATIA
B :

—  ARBEIIR MR (p)i) 2 A
M) RERN KRB Z &
AABRERE T AR RES
MEEZR{TEEREZE
BREhAt BB 2 AR EE:
)53

- RESIIRWEIMB/ESR
s T AMRMAZ K
HERARRBEITZRITER
PrEE 2 BE



(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note 1(u).

(iv) Properties revaluation reserve

This reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land

and buildings in note 1(f).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company was $71,760,000 (2007: $181,923,000).

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
difference between the underlying net tangible assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company at the time of the
Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1994. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for distribution
to shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; and (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

and its issued share capital and share premium account.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5)

(d) REEEREWN (&)

(e) m

(iii) B 5 ff
FE 52 b1 LT P S A
1B 2 R B R 2 B B
£ - b R IR I 1 (WP B2
BRI -

(iv) WRE G #E

ZHEBEERL LRI
MR L3 KB TP ER A 2 & 7T R
RELIE -

o] 5 2 K {48

ZENFF+A=+—R"17
TR TARBERRE 2 #HEE
%EZ%71,760,00075( ZELF
181,923,0007T) °

%

ARBZEABBRBARRIFFREZ
MEARZBEERLEEFERA
RAEIR—NNHFEERD T ATE
TEEEARMET RAZEE
ZEB-BRBE-NN\-—FERERA
A (RIER]) - BABRBRAIH DR T AX
R o AT () A D B HREBA B RSN
IR BB 1E 3 IR A& T BE A B (B B B B
BERF: R(NVEEZTERERA
{8 K B 31T AN R B )i (B R 2 48 A0
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(f) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and
obligations under finance leases and the Notes issued) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders,

raised new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

(f) EXEHE

$%@%E§§$ZEEH%B%EK
B AEERBESBECEREEK
B R R K R E 2 E
%&HE%EEM&E%%@EXﬁE’U%&
BB RIRRAE R R

AEEEBLERHEARBERRR
ARER LERSRR@BBERT
AREHEZ RS EREKFRARFNE
AR 5 R B 4T B K AR R 2 B R 15
B TRERKERBNELHERR
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AEENBEFRYEHERA L X
FREEEEARBEZEE -FILAE
B KARREFEEAERAER

#(BEAERERREE BHREM
ENFIE mEMEEEHBREET
FB) MIERFHRDIRBRE - RBEE R
ReFEY KRABEARRERAZ
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TEZRER SERAEEEFHEYR
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(f) Capital management (continued) (f) EXEE (%)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2008 RZZTENFRZZEZTLF+A
and 2007 was as follows: S+ RAZERABRGEFHEERAL
EOT:
The Group
2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
EEE
—gENF —ETLF
Bt = o T
Current liabilities: mBEE:
— Trade and other payables —E S RHMBENFRIE 21 88,457 57,276
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEER 22 156,938 146,653
— Notes payable —ENER 23 108,367 =
— Obligations under finance leases —REEHEHAESER 24 9,879 7,108
363,641 211,037
Non-current liabilities: FnBBEE:
— Bank and other borrowings —IRITREMEER 22 21,954 46,349
— Notes payable —ERNEE 23 - 76,086
— Obligations under finance leases —RIEHEREEH 24 7,843 5,323
Total debt BB 393,438 338,795
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BBRERAEEED 20 (23,123) (39,181)
Net debt BEFER 370,315 299,614
Total capital A 858 28 178,452 336,848
Net debt-to-capital ratio BEFHERAL X 208% 89%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LT HIRR)

RARREKEARZE T EERT
REWEFH AHEINZ E AR EFR -
BE-_ZTTN\F+_-_A=+—ALHF
ER AEEDERZEERRITR
SEFAE AFTEINE AN E 2 B R
BB RFBRMEE1(b) 22 %23#
1(b), 22 and 23. e

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to capital
requirements imposed by certain creditor banks and note
holders. During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group did not comply with the covenants in respect of capital
requirements imposed by these creditor banks and note

holders. Details of the non-compliance are disclosed in notes
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

29 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

30

(a)

(b)

During the year, additions to plant and equipment of
the Group acquired under finance leases amounted to

$17,324,000 (2007: $12,895,000).

During the year, additions to intangible assets of the Group of
$41,800,000 (2007: $Nil) were settled by being offset against

certain trade debtor balances of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to

these risks and financial management policies and practices used by

the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade debtors and bills receivable, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customers’ past history of making payments when due and
current liability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operates. Trade debtors
and bills receivable are due within 60 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

29 ERFBRERF

(a)

(b)

30 Bf 7 & B

I:l/\

RERN REBURELHAERE
BENREEZANEE17,324,0007T
—EE+4:12,895,0007T) °

RER ARERHHEETESRK

REBRZ A AMABECEREER
41,800,000t (ZFEZELF T ) °

BEERAREE

RBIE AR R MNE R R AN S B —

BMEBBRETFEL AKBEAAEZZE

REAEEEHZERBRNYHEERR

KB BHIBR AT :

(a) EERM
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(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant considerations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual

customers.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 28% (2007: 25%) and 77%
(2007: 76%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest

customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group or

the Company to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The treasury and liquidity management of the Group is
managed on a centralised basis. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions and funding from the note/bond
holders to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

(a)

(b)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuea)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

The Group

2008

30 EREER A AEE 2

(b)

REMRER &)

TREMIIHAS LR RE
RER NEEBHSRTAOIML
AEERACFBITESRAB (R
EIAB KN KRETE 2 M BAT R i
RFRCRINEERHZMEGFE) K
AEBRARBARERIN 2 HE
Sk

rEM

2007

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than  More than

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than More than

Within 1 year 2 years Balance Within 1 year 2 years Balance
1 year but less but less sheet 1 year but less but less sheet
oron than than  More than carrying oron than than  More than carying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §1000 §1000 §'000 §'000
ZBENE ZERtE
AHFEFANBRERH ELEZElR S
-Fh BE-F BB-F BEEER il BE-F BBzE BERER
RER BRER BRER il hiE3 #it KAEE FRER ERER ERER fesehiks 3t BEE
i r r r r r T A T T i i
Tadeand other B HREMENFE
payables 88,457 - - - 88457 88457 | 57,276 = = - 51216 57276
Bankandother  BTREMES
borrowings 159,243 11,113 6,722 4043 181,721 178,892 | 154542 21232 14,019 6,674 19,467 193,002
Notes payable EREE 109,973 - - - 109,973 108,367 7,800 7,800 81,900 - 97,500 76,086
Obligations under  BE 47 E (&7
finance leases 10,490 1119 1,253 - 18862 17722 7,761 4334 1,674 - 13769 12431
368,163 18,832 1975 4,043 399,013 393438 | 227379 33366 97,593 6,674 365012 338795
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuea)

(c)

The Company

2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥ & MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

30 MBEMEERQAAEBE 2

(b)

REMRER &)
b NN

2007

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than  More than More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Balance Within 1 year 2 years Balance
1 year but less but less sheet 1 year but less but less sheet
oron than than  More than carrying oron than than  More than aarrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
§'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §'000
ZBENE ZERtE
ANFEFANRERY AOFTIRERH
-Fh BE-F BB-F BEEER il BE-F BBzE BERER
RER BRER BRER il hiE3 #it KAEE FRER ERER BRER fesehiks 3t BEE
T Fr r r r r T A T T i i
Tadeand other ~ BHREMENFE
payables 58,463 - - - 58463 58463 | 57,847 = = - 57841 57847
Bankandother R RAMEE
borrowings 40 - - - 40 40 - - - - - -
Notes payable EREE 109,973 - - - 109973 108,367 7,800 7,800 81,900 - 97,500 76,086
168,476 - - - 168476 166,870 | 65,647 7,800 81,900 - 155347 133933

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from its
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors the
level of its net fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and
manages the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial

"

assets and liabilities. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities less
interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for short-
term working capital purposes). The Group's interest rate

profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(c)

M RERE

AEBEEAZNEXAREIERAE
B RAENEREEENEREL G
ESAREEAD AR AERENK
Rl kA BEMNXER KNEBEE
B EL B A R R AT B A RAE B FEK

IR - FRLLRRM S - ARE S [ &
EFEIERRTESBAERS
KRE (BEEHEEESRERIN) -
HEEERE 2 ANEEFEMRREHR
TFIG) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group's net borrowings (as defined above) at the balance

30 B EBEER AR

LB fE 4

(c) N=XRER (&7)
(i) FIEMXE

TRHAVNAEERBER 2R
FER(EEM L) 2R AR

sheet date.
The Group
2008 2007
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
% $'000 % $'000
r&EE
—gENE —TTLE
BREF = B H =
% Fr % FiT
Net fixed rate borrowings: Bl EF REEH%E
- Bank and other —RITREMEE
borrowings - - 8.00 750
— Notes payable -ENEE 11.89 108,367 11.00 76,086
- Obligations under finance —BEUMAEEE
leases 3.13 12,826 4.27 704
121,193 77,540
Variable rate borrowings: BREEE
— Bank and other —RITREMEE
borrowings 5.00 178,892 6.36 192,252
- Obligations under -BELHEAR
finance leases 3.37 4,896 4.56 11,727
183,788 203,979
Total interest-bearing STEEEARE
borrowings 304,981 281,519
Net fixed rate borrowings & A & & & F 5815
as a percentage of SEEELE
total interest-bearing ANt
borrowings 39.7% 27.5%
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(c) RIZEmEPE 2)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) &BEDHT

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately $767,000 (2007: decreased/
increased the Group's profit after tax and retained profits

by approximately $841,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group's loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group's loss after tax (and accumulated losses) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2007.

RN—_EZENF+-_A=1+—H"
HETRE LR L T BS0EE
B mATEHAM A ZEERRTE
BB SAEERBIEEER
2EEE A TB%4A767,000
T(ZZZ+F AEERTBE
wm A KRBT %, EAL
841,0007T) °

SR SRR E 5 AT BRR R AR N R
PREEEEEERNXEEE
RAREFAEAEEREEARM
RENSAREEY QA EER
R [\ e ) B2 7 T BB AR SR I B AR
®EE (RRFBER)JREL
BN R AAKEREE

FENENMETASPNRESE
MR E R E N KRR AR ERR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The

Group manages this risk as follows:

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at

spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in
the case of Group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, in either Hong Kong dollars or United States
dollars. Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s

borrowings.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥ & MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

30 MBEMEERQAAEBE 2

(d) Shs B (42)
(i) A&/ B
TRFMTI A R ER S E B

The following table details the Group’s exposure at

the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency

other than the functional currency of the entity to which

EHEECERER LR
MOV BB FHEZ ERREEXK
BEMEEZINERR

they relate.
The Group KEE
Exposure to foreign currencies
SHERR
2008 2007
United United
States Dollars Renminbi States Dollars Renminbi
'000 '000 '000 ‘000
—EEN\F ZTTHF
E AR eV AR¥
Fr Fr T Fr
Trade and other receivables & 5 £ fth i W 5008 9,507 2,131 9,873 3,453
Cash and cash equivalents IR& RIS EEY 121 797 455 3,223
Trade and other payables & 5 K& H b f& {5 5k 18 (4,666) (5,486) (6,016) (3,482)
Bank and other borrowings 81T K H & & (9,587) (1,400) (6,567) =
Net exposure arising from EHEREENBEE
recognised assets and Fr EE A 2 [ B 75 58
liabilities (4,625) (3,958) (2,255) 3,194
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 0 I KEREERAAEBE &)

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the
United States dollar would be materially uneffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United States

dollar against other currencies.

(d) sh¥EEBR (%)
(i) SBETH

TRINLEAE AU AEEFE
FENOERMNZA LR
B R AR AT A H b e B B
FIENBERT  AEB KRB
BER(RRFEBER) MG
5 A EL A AR A R 0 S B E AR A B
REH Ut s AEERR
ATEITZBMBEXEIER
ETAEMER 2 BEESHAE

By 488
-2 X

The Group KEEF
2008 2007
Effect Effect
Increase/ on loss Increase/ on profit
(decrease) after tax Effect (decrease) after tax Effect
in foreign and on other in foreign and on other
exchange accumulated components exchange retained  components
rates losses of equity rates profits of equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
—EENF —ERLF
HRB% HRB%
BER i A R
EXLH RitEE HHEOGRE Ex A REEF  HEMRE
/ (TH) ZEE Hhzypg (TR 7B HhRE
T T T T
Renminbi AR 5% 220 - 5% 168 -
(5)% (220) - (5)% (168) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

(d) ShEEm bz (2)
(i) EBEEZH (&)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous affects
on each of the Group's entities’ loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation

purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2008 and

2007.

(e)

ERMEINZAFEREARE
EEEBNERNDEERE
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RBRETT) ZBRTRIRE R R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

31 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008 not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

31 RIE

() R=ETEENF+=A=+—BFRRE
BHRPERBEZEREBMT

The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

rEE

—2ENF —2ELF
Fx T
Contracted for B &4 3,250 196
Authorised but not contacted for BERERRITY - 3,032
3,250 3,228

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

(b) R=—ZEENF+-A=+—8 &&
ERERATEE 2 ELRNI N>

as follows: REFEESBEERRATFRR
e
The Group
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
AEE
s/ B
Frx T
Within 1 year —F A 9,701 7,374
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFRN 8,418 8,049
18,119 15,423

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

AEESBRARBELEHOBAEZY
E2EMA-ZEHEZNHFRB
FR—ELE AEBENEAMA
EREBEN - ZEHERERBRIR
HE -
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(c) Production commitments

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered into
business affiliation agreements with certain major customers.
Under these agreements, the Group is required to carry on
certain minimum levels of production for the customers. A
broad minimum production level is generally agreed annually
and the specific production orders are agreed upon from
time to time. The Group monitors its operations on an
ongoing basis with a view to ensuring compliance with such

requirements.

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to certain banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
wholly owned subsidiaries which remain in force so long as the

subsidiaries have drawn down under the banking facilities.

The Company is also one of the entities covered by certain cross
guarantee arrangements issued by the Company and certain of its
wholly owned subsidiaries to certain banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to the Group which remains in force so long as
the Group has drawn down under the banking facilities. Under each
of these guarantees, the Company and all the subsidiaries that are
a party to the guarantee are jointly and severally liable for all and
any of the borrowings of each of them from the bank which is the

beneficiary of the guarantee.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

() £EEAE

RE—REBBRET AEEBEET
TEREPAILEBB B HE RIZZ
Eh#E AEBEASEPETE TR
BREZEERY REEEKF—
RESFHE MERBEERTSEAE
TREFABE AEEASHEERE
EE BRHERETBBMAE

EREcHHER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any
of the above guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at
the balance sheet date under the sole guarantee by the Company
is the aggregate amount of the facilities drawn down by the
subsidiaries of $29,739,000 (2007: $20,088,000). The maximum
liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under the cross
guarantee is the aggregate amount of the facilities drawn down by
all the subsidiaries that are covered by the cross guarantee, being

$178,636,000 (2007: $137,475,000).

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's directors
as disclosed in note 7 and the highest paid employees as

disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

EHEERM
BERAR A
P A< R B 48 7

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Equity compensation benefits

Total remuneration for 2008 is included in “staff costs” (see

note 5(b)).

In 2007, certain remuneration was capitalised as development

costs under “intangible assets” (see note 14).

EEEZHBER 2

HEH BEBERAR/BEBMEM L ER
AREmMARAIERRE - REEH -
RDABEARD G ERE—ERTE
CERABEBERARHEBWNEARMIENZ
& 48%829,739,000 (- BT+
20,088,0007T) - MAEE B - KA FIREZ
REERFIEZEABERAZERE
BERASRZFBENE QAR ZE
B#% 5178,636,0000T (— T T L4
137,475,0007T) °

//>

A{

—

JI%

ik

) TEEEEBE2ME

AEBTEEBRE 2 ME (BREWFE
T ES M FARARIEE A RS
FrEES N FReaFEEZEE)N
N

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
—EENE —ETLF
T T
14,317 13,844

- 271

14,317 14,115

“EZN\FHSEBOFAATEIRK
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group paid
rentals to Ms Chan Siu Chu, mother of the directors of
the Company, namely Ms Ho Yin King, Helena and Mr Ho
Fai Keung, Jacky and mother-in-law of the director of the
Company, Ms Lo Suk King, amounting to $282,000 (2007:
$282,000). The transactions were conducted on terms with

reference to current market prices.

Balances with related parties

The amount due to directors of $1,314,000 (2007: $Nil) are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand, and are

included in “Trade and other payables” (note 21).

34 NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENTS

(a)

(b)

A total of 50,000,000 new shares were issued to an
independent third party on 24 February 2009. Net proceeds of
approximately $13,800,000 were received by the Company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, warrants were exercised
to subscribe for 48,250,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of $6,273,000. Further details of these

warrants are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Notes

33 B

to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥ & MY o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)

RBAEALRS (

(b) HtbEABEA L 2R 5

(c)

34 3EA

(a)

BE-_ZZ)/\E+__A=+—HILF
EHE AEEIAHE FROKK
T BRAOBKRLZ T IAR A E B MR
T RAEEEEZ R RAAR
EZEMRZ T2 EE - 524£282,000
T (ZZZ+H4:282,0000T) °%%E
RSB RBBITMEET

BEBREAL &R

JEE = 2 3XI81,314,000L (= EF
+F ) REER  RERERE
RE® Wt A [E 5 RHE b B 5%
B (Mi&E21) Ao

HEGEEARSER

E-TZNF-_A=-tHmBAR—F
Y828 = 75 % 114 #£50,000,000/%
FIRAD o AN A B WER BT 15 SIBF RE A
13,800,0007T °

REEB%  RIREES
48,250,0000% A8 A &) ¥ i@
6,273,0007T ° Ik &R MK
R F IR M 23 -

FEITEE AR R
- REA
W HER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

34 NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENTS (continued)

(o]

(d)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into between
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Issuer”)
and a substantial shareholder (the “Subscriber”), the Issuer
issued, and the Subscriber subscribed for, convertible bonds
(the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal of $177 million on
6 April 2009. The Bonds carry interest at a fixed rate of 12%
per annum, were secured by net assets of a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and mature on 6 April 2012.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the subscription
agreement, the Bonds are convertible into the Issuer’s shares
representing 30% of its enlarged issued share capital. The
Bonds are convertible at any time following the issuance
date and up to the maturity date unless previously redeemed
or converted, the Bonds will be redeemed at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds plus all unpaid
interest accrued up to the date of the redemption. No
adjustments have been made to these financial statements as a

result of the issues of the Bonds after the balance sheet date.

Upon recognition, the host liability including the redemption
option of the Subscriber and the Issuer is stated at amortised
cost while the conversion option is separately accounted for as
a derivative liability and stated as fair value through profit or

loss.

On 21 May 2009, the Company entered into an agreement
with a third party in relation to the subscription at a price of
HK$0.195 per subscription share of 109,000,000 new shares

to be allotted and issued.

34 FEFE
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Notes 13, 15 and 26 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to impairment of property, plant and
equipment, goodwill impairment and fair value of share options

granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets have any indication of
impairment in accordance with the relevant accounting
policies. If such indication exists, the recoverable amounts
of the assets would be determined by reference to value in
use and net selling price. Value in use is determined using
the discounted cash flow method. Owing to inherent risks
associated with estimations in the timing and magnitude of
the future cash flows and net selling prices, the estimated
recoverable amount of the assets may be different from its
actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be affected

by accuracy of the estimations.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered impaired and an impairment loss may
be recognised. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of trade and other
receivables is the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that

is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 3 5E)

(c)

(d)

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
historical consumption trends and management’s experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write down of
inventories would be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable value.
Owing to changes in market trend, actual sales may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be affected

by the accuracy of this estimation.

Provision for income tax

Provision for income tax is made based on the taxable income
for the period as determined by the Group. The determination
of taxable income involves the exercise of judgement on
interpretations of the relevant tax rules and regulations. The
amount of income tax and hence profit or loss could be
affected by any interpretations and clarifications which the tax

authority may issue from time to time.

(c)

(d)
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and

financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or

amended disclosures in the financial statements:

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 7% ¥R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&t 3 5E)
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Financial Summary

81 75 1 &

1. RESULTS 1. %8\
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BENE i §o S5 TN —TERE —TEmE
FHT F#ET FHT FHT FET
Turnover L 455,531 418,159 345,222 329,745 363,765
(Loss)/profit before taxation iRl (E51E) /& F (151,959) 35,521 69,747 (134,012) 20,402
Income tax Frig%t (7,828) (2,045) (4,782) (1,207) (285)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BR)&Fl (159,787) 33,476 64,965 (135,219) 20,117
Minority interests DEIRR E R - = = = =
(Loss)/profit attributable to AAREERR
equity shareholders of FE{E (E518) /% A
the Company (159,787) 33,476 64,965 (135,219) 20,117
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EEHAES
At 31 December
R+=BA=+—-H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BENF o3 B2 —TEAE —TERE —TEmE
FHT F#HT FHT FHT F#T
Assets BE
Property, plant and EN e
equipment 63,740 113,225 99,344 119,917 199,521
Goodwill kS - 39,545 39,545 39,545 39,545
Other assets HpEE 525,172 531,640 414,346 365,569 331,184
Total assets BERE 588,912 684,410 553,235 525,031 570,250
Liabilities af
Current liabilities nmEaE 374,126 218,148 255,375 292,822 236,265
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 36,334 129,414 20,670 23,800 15,187
Total liabilities BERR 410,460 347,562 276,045 316,622 251,452
Equity attributable to KEAREBERR
equity shareholders of FE 1 B #E
the Company 178,452 336,848 277,190 208,409 318,798
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